












 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

DECEMBER 15, 2008 

1



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 
 
BOARD MEETING                        STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
7:00 P.M.                            5606 SOUTH 147th STREET 
                                          DECEMBER 15, 2008 

AGENDA 
 

A. Call to Order 
 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda 

items only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 

E. Routine Matters 
1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes –  November 17, 2008 
2. *Approval of Bills 
3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 
4. Summary of Committee of Whole Meeting – December 1, 2008 

 
F. Information Items 

1. Showcase:  Fall Sports, National Board Certified Teachers  
2. Employees of the Month 
3. Superintendent’s Comments 
4. Board Comments/Announcements 
5. Report from Student Representative 

 
G. Unfinished Business: 

 
H. New Business 

1. Receive and Place on File the Audit Report 2007-2008 
2. Approval of 2009  Summer School Proposal 
3. Approval of Rule 4405.3 – Human Resources – Payroll Deduction – 403(b) Tax Sheltered Annuities 

and Custodial Accounts 
4. Approval of Resolution and Millard Public Schools 403(b) Retirement Plan Policy Regarding 

Funding Vehicles/Vendor(s) Selection and De-Selection 
5. Approval of Reagan Addition 
6. Resolution for Retiring Board Member 
7. Approval to Change Meeting Dates in January  
8. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignation(s), Voluntary Separation, and Resignation Notification 

Incentive Program, New Hire(s) 
 

I. Reports 
1. Enrollment Report 
2. Preliminary Projections for Fall 2009 
3. NCA Reports 
4. Risk Management Report 
 
 
 

2



3



 
.BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
OMAHA, NEBRASKA  

 
REGULAR MEETING       STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 
7:00 P.M.                         5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 
                                               DECEMBER 15, 2008 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 
A. Call to Order 
 
 The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 
 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
C. Roll Call 
 
D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items 
only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting.
 
*E.1. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes – 

November 17, 2008.  (See enclosure.) 
 
*E.2. Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to approve the bills.  (See  
    Enclosures.) 
 
*E.3.  Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File.  (See 

enclosure.) 
 
 E.4.  Summary of Committee of the Whole Meeting – December 1, 2008 
 
F.1.   Showcase:  Fall Sports, National Board Certified Teachers 
 
F.2.  Employees of the Month 
 
F.3.  Superintendent’s Comments 
 
F.4.  Board Comments/Announcements 
 
F.5.  Report from Student Representatives 
 
H.1. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to Receive and Place on File the Audit Report 

2007-2008. (See enclosure.) 
 
H.2. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the 2009 Summer School Proposal.  

(See enclosure.) 
 
H.3.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 4405.3 – Human Resources – 

Payroll Deduction – 403(b) Tax Sheltered Annuities and Custodian Accounts.  (See enclosure.) 
 
H.4.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the Resolution and Millard Public 

Schools 403(b) Retirement Plan Policy Regarding Funding Vehicle(s)/Vendor(s) Selection and De-Selection.  
(See enclosure.) 

 

4



Administrative Memorandum 
December 15, 2008 
Page 2 
 
 
H.5.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the recommendation that the 

architects be authorized and directed to proceed with bidding for the proposed construction of additions to 
Reagan Elementary School.  (See enclosure.) 

 
H.6.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the Resolution for Retiring Board 

Member.  (See enclosure.) 
 
H.7.   Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the recommendation to 

have two meetings in January a Committee Meeting on January 12, 2009, and a Board of 
Education meeting on January 19, 2009. (See enclosure.) 

 
H.8. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions: 

Resignation(s), Voluntary Separation, and Resignation Notification Incentive Program, and New 
Hire(s).  (See enclosure.) 

 
I.  Reports:

1. Enrollment Report 
2. Preliminary Projections for Fall 2009 
3. NCA Reports 
4. Risk Management Report 

 
J.  Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 

1. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 5, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 
5606 South 147th Street 

2. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, January 12, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 
Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

3. PDK Dinner on Wednesday, January 14, 2009 at 5:30 p.m. at Centennial Hall at the Thompson Alumni 
Center at UNO 

4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 19, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 
5606 South 147th Street 

5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 2, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 
5606 South 147th Street 

6. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 9, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 
Center, 5606 South 147th Street 

7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 16, 2009 at 7 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 
5606 South 147th Street 

 
K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a 

request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 
 
L.  Adjournment
 
All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items 
may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

5



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17 

 
A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the State 
of Nebraska.  The meeting was convened in open and public session at 7:00 p.m., Monday, November 17, 2008, at 
the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street. 
 
PRESENT: Jean Stothert, Mike Pate, Dave Anderson, Mike Kennedy, and Linda Poole 
 
ABSENT: Brad Burwell 
 
Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on November 14, 2008; a 
copy of the publication is being attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the 
Board of Education and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these 
minutes.  Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of 
Education of this meeting.  All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to 
the attendance of the public. 
 
At 7:00 p.m. Jean Stothert announced the Public meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for public 
inspection.  Mrs. Stothert asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll call was taken and members present were:  Jean Stothert, Mike Pate, Dave Anderson, Mike Kennedy, and 
Linda Poole.  Absent was Brad Burwell. 
 
Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Dave Anderson, to excuse Brad Burwell from the meeting, upon roll call 
vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mike Pate, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve the Board of Education minutes November 3, 2008, 
approve the bills, and receive the treasurer’s report and place on file, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  
Motion carried. 
 
Mrs. Stothert recognized Boy Scout Troop 336 who was attending the meeting, because they were working on their 
Citizenship in the Community badge.  Mrs. Stothert welcomed the group to the meeting. 
 
Showcase highlighted the National Merit Semi-Finalists and Commended Students from the three high schools. 
 
Superintendent’s Comments: 
 

1. Next week school will be out and the office will be closed on Thursday and Friday due to 
Thanksgiving break. 

 
2. The December committee meeting will be held on Monday, December 1, 2008 at which time a 

mandated orientation session will be conducted by the Board of Education for our new board 
member Julie Kannas.  Duncan Young was asked to attend this orientation session. 

 
3. The next regular scheduled board meeting will be held on Monday, December 15, 2008. 

 
4. January 5, 2009 is the first scheduled board meeting in January.  Since the district will be seating a 

new board member and this can be done the first Thursday after the first Tuesday a board meeting 
could be held on January 12 or wait until January 19 to elect officers and seat the new board 
member.  Board members were asked to give this some thought. 

 
 
 

6



Board of Education Minutes 
November 17, 2008 
Page 2 
 
 

5. Last Monday at the committee meeting we addressed the budget information in regards to the 
building fund and the various projects.  This morning the proposal was reviewed again and it will 
be sent to the board, because this will be discussed at the board meeting on December 15th. 

 
6. Thursday, November 20, 2008 will be the caucus for the 11 school districts to elect a board 

member from each of the six areas to sit on the Learning Community Coordinating Council.  The 
Secretary of State mailed what the rules are going to be for that evening, and they are pretty 
explicit, so there should not be any confusion. 

 
Board Comments: 
 
Dave Anderson said he will be attending the NASB Board of Directors meeting on Tuesday and he will attend the 
NASB State Education Conference, where on Friday he will be the voting delegate at the delegate assembly. 
 
Linda Poole said she will be attending the NASB Board of Directors meeting as a guest, and also will be at the 
delegate assembly. 
 
Jean Stothert offered her congratulations to Millard South and Millard West for their win over the weekend, and 
now will be playing each other for the state championship in football. 
 
Mrs. Stothert also congratulated Mike Pate and Linda Poole for being re-elected to the Board of Education.  She 
said by the margin they won by reflected on the whole board and the Millard administration.  She commented that 
she was happy to see the number of candidates who ran for the board. 
 
Mrs. Stothert reported that she and Dr. Lutz will be attending the Learning Community Discussion being sponsored 
by Building Bright Futures on Friday, December 5, 2008. 
 
Maurice Green, student representative from Millard North High School, Emily Nowell, student representative from 
Millard West High School, and Brittney Albin, student representative from Millard South High School reported on 
various activities that have taken place at their respective buildings in the last couple of weeks. 
 
Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Dave Anderson, to approve the Millard Public Schools High School 
Curriculum Handbook and Registration Guide for 2009-2010, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Dave Anderson to reaffirm Policy 4000 – Human Resources – General 
Personnel Policy Statement, Policy 4310 – Human Resources – Publication or Creation of Educational Materials, 
Policy 4326 – Human Resources – Part-Time Certificated Employees, Rule 4326.1 – Human Resources – Part-
Time Certificated Employees: Part-Time Certificated Employees, Policy 4400 – Human Resources - Salary 
Schedule, to reaffirm Rule 4400.1 – Human Resources  -Salary Schedules and Payroll Dates, Rule 4400.2 – Human 
Resources – Salary Schedules:  Salary Schedules:  Teacher and Nurse Placement, and Policy 4520 – Human 
Resources – Vacations, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Dave Anderson, seconded by Mike Pate to approve Personnel Actions: Resignation: Gerard Gauthier, 
Voluntary Separation: Dr. Kirby Eltiste, and Resignation Notification Incentive Program: Wayne Crumbley, 
Richard Everts, Michael Farrens, Tamara Grieve, Maria Hicks, Mary Keefner, Deborah Korves-Gunnink, Nancy 
Maust, Kay Milow, Cynthia Nabity, Linda Nichols, Jennifer Sachau, Julie Sefzik, Kate Weidauer, and Dr. Kirby  
Eltiste, upon roll call vote, Mike Pate, Linda Poole, Jean Stothert and Dave Anderson voted aye.  Mike Kennedy 
voted nay.  Motion carried. 

7





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Millard Public Schools 
December 15,  2008 

 

9



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SUSAN J ANGLEMYER130469296610 197.73 
BELLEVUE WEST HIGH SCHOOL133636296611 48.00 
CHRISTOPHER COLLING107454296614 150.00 
CONOCOPHILLIPS133617296615 8,739.80 
MARK W FELDHAUSEN040470296616 18.00 
BETH L FINK132001296617 1,008.39 
FIREGUARD INC133960296618 460.00 
AMY J FRIEDMAN041543296619 105.40 
GREATER OMAHA LEAGUE OF DEBATE100966296620 0.00 
VICTORIA L HOSKOVEC136336296621 268.78 
KARCHER FLOOR CARE INC134194296622 705.79 
KEITH W LUTZ060153296624 20.00 
MARGARET MCINTEER130749296625 128.70 
NATIONAL ASSOC OF SECONDARY067253296626 295.00 
NATIONAL ASSOC OF SECONDARY067253296627 265.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732296628 306.25 
NORFOLK HIGH SCHOOL101008296629 255.00 
NORFOLK HIGH SCHOOL101008296630 182.00 
NORFOLK HIGH SCHOOL101008296631 47.00 
OMAHA WINDUSTRIAL CO.071039296632 211.70 
PAPILLION/LAVISTA HIGH SCHOOL071567296633 455.00 
PAPILLION/LAVISTA HIGH SCHOOL071567296634 140.00 
PAPILLION/LAVISTA HIGH SCHOOL071567296635 186.00 
ANGELO D PASSARELLI108098296636 210.27 
SEARCH INSTITUTE130851296637 1,000.00 
JAMES V SUTFIN084959296639 57.06 
ANNE M TIPTON136995296641 101.63 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE090242296642 418.33 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354296643 287.50 
BARBARA N WALLER093008296644 113.00 
ANDERSEN MIDDLE SCHOOL065425296658 6,991.40 
ASSOCIATION FOR CAREER/TECHNICAL131183296660 590.00 
CHRISTOPHER S BRADSTREET137177296661 55.00 
CHRISTOPHER COLLING107454296662 100.00 
CONVENTION MANAGEMENT RESOURCES INC133600296663 385.00 
SUSAN L DEROY133737296664 29.25 
FELCOR LODGING & TRUST137173296665 515.17 
TARA R FABIAN134861296666 40.95 
MICHAEL C FIALA137176296667 55.00 
GREATER OMAHA LEAGUE OF DEBATE100966296668 90.00 
HYATT CORPORATION137174296669 414.12 
CHRISTINE L INGRAM134822296670 29.84 
KARCHER FLOOR CARE INC134194296671 185.38 
DAWN M LANHAM134373296672 35.10 
LINCOLN EAST HIGH SCHOOL100058296673 420.00 
NEBRASKA BRASS133005296675 350.00 

10



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
NEBRASKA STATE THESPIAN SOCIETY132292296676 40.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732296677 312.50 
POPULATION REFERENCE BUREAU132956296678 50.00 
RESORT INNS OF AMERICA INC136727296679 416.64 
ANDREW M VALENTI137175296681 55.00 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354296682 312.50 
HD SUPPLY CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY LTD133663296683 19.50 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773296685 6,969.73 
JOAN MOSER MCSWEENEY/GAIL BOUSHEY137127296686 69.00 
AA WHEEL & TRUCK SUPPLY INC107252296687 89.42 
ACE WELDING & REPAIRING, INC.134315296691 2,450.00 
ACT INC010003296692 14,777.90 
KAREN S ADAMS133402296693 115.12 
ADVANCED OFFICE INTERIORS CORP102832296694 1,863.14 
LAURA L AGUILAR136621296695 124.10 
AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL INC108351296697 71.16 
AKSARBEN PIPE & SEWER CLEANING LLC133620296698 1,822.36 
AMAZON.COM INC107651296699 226.68 
AAHPERD011241296700 390.00 
AMERICAN BOILER COMPANY097090296701 2,096.48 
AMERICAN LEGACY PUBLISHING CO135681296702 19.95 
AMERICAN ASSN TEACHERS OF GERMAN103085296703 600.00 
AMI GROUP INC102430296704 1,145.90 
AMSAN LLC069689296705 20,797.04 
AMSCO SCHOOL PUBLICATIONS INC010042296706 220.69 
JILL M ANDERSON131265296707 80.14 
SUSAN J ANGLEMYER130469296709 146.97 
APPLE COMPUTER, INC.012989296710 869.00 
APPLES & MORE A TEACHERS STORE135051296711 46.77 
APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES106889296712 73.01 
APPLIED INFORMATION MGMT INSTITUTE107541296713 1,600.00 
MERRILL COMPANY108092296714 1,269.95 
AQUA-CHEM INC106436296715 952.64 
DIANE ARAUJO133770296716 47.99 
ASCD  (CONFERENCE/REGISTRATIONS)106167296719 1,553.00 
ASCD013496296720 232.70 
SARAH A ASCHENBRENNER134235296721 106.24 
ASI MODULEX013226296722 50.00 
ASSOCIATION FOR CAREER/TECHNICAL131183296723 2,040.00 
AUTO STATION102237296724 1,597.01 
B & R BLEACHERS INC015805296725 10,235.00 
CAROLE J BACKHUUS132453296726 14.04 
BADGER BODY & TRUCK EQUIPMENT CO016295296727 185.98 
BAER SUPPLY109852296728 242.77 
BAG 'N SAVE132405296729 300.30 
SANDRA BAGLEY017600296730 84.36 

11



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646296733 2,470.77 
BARNES DISTRIBUTION132608296734 1,197.60 
CYNTHIA L BARR-MCNAIR017877296735 254.06 
ROSEMARY W BARTA017926296736 84.94 
CHERA A BARTELS131142296737 5.73 
LORI A BARTELS107979296738 304.78 
BEAR CONSTRUCTION INC136272296739 5,645.00 
BEAR GRAPHICS INC134359296740 1,476.48 
RAMIZA BECIROVIC133585296741 27.93 
BRIAN F BEGLEY107540296742 149.18 
JULIE K BERGSTROM134884296743 12.46 
NOLAN J BEYER134945296745 235.87 
BEYOND PLAY130683296746 42.85 
ANNE M BIRKEL137140296747 73.70 
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT019111296748 29,847.27 
TIFFANY M BOCK SMITH134478296749 38.02 
KIMBERLY M BOLAN130899296750 209.43 
BOOKWORM101364296752 191.73 
ANNE MARIE BOOSE137172296753 38.03 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559296754 12,648.70 
BOYS TOWN NATIONAL019835296755 1,735.83 
WENDY M BRENNAN132273296756 0.00 
BRIGGS, INC.019861296757 922.95 
BROADCAST SPORTS107085296758 500.00 
KIMBERLY A BROWN136205296759 213.10 
NANCY A BROWN133824296760 148.01 
NANCY J BRUGGER020270296761 35.10 
ALEXANDRA BRUGLER135215296762 50.00 
CHANDA R BRULAND136552296763 35.34 
STEPHANIE A BURDIC107595296764 147.57 
BUREAU OF EDUCATION & RESEARCH020550296765 709.00 
JONATHAN C BUSCHER137179296767 137.78 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431296768 3,377.00 
CAITLIN CEDFELDT136560296769 100.00 
ALLISON MARIE CAMPBELL137189296772 50.00 
CANFIELDS INC100215296773 79.80 
ELIZABETH J CAREY106806296774 63.99 
PIONEER LOCK CO INC054237296775 7.50 
CARLEX INC023925296776 48.90 
CAROLINA BIOLOGICAL SUPPLY CO023970296777 318.06 
CARROLL APPLIANCE SERVICE CO137138296778 69.39 
CURTIS R CASE131158296779 249.79 
CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS133970296780 3,907.00 
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.133589296781 2,451.20 
SUSAN M CHADWICK135648296782 20.71 
MALCOLM K CHAI134043296783 177.84 

12



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
CHAMPS-ELYSEES, INC.102753296784 8.38 
ERIK P CHAUSSEE132271296786 54.99 
CHILDCRAFT EDUCATION CORP024652296787 330.20 
CHILDREN'S HOME HEALTHCARE106851296788 7,426.00 
HOLZAPFEL ENTERPRISES INC137145296789 300.00 
CHOICE LITERACY135968296790 435.00 
CITY OF OMAHA132061296791 35.00 
CLASSROOM DIRECT099222296792 173.61 
DALE CLAUSEN025235296793 208.26 
PATRICIA A CLIFTON131135296794 100.91 
LISA L CLINARD136780296795 254.37 
NANCY S COLE137013296796 43.70 
COLLEGE BOARD/NYO107482296797 440.00 
SHARON R COMISAR-LANGDON022701296798 231.52 
COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC130646296799 11,907.13 
COMMUNICATION SERVICES INC.106902296800 603.85 
COMPUTER CABLE CONNECTION INC025689296801 557.15 
CONSUMER REPORTS025940296802 26.00 
CONTINENTAL FIRE SPRINKLER CO.026048296803 1,704.24 
CONTROL DEPOT INC136574296804 526.14 
CONTROL MASTERS INC026057296805 13,804.40 
COURTROOM & CLASSROOM131676296806 110.00 
CP RECOVERY131506296807 1,179.25 
CREATIVE TEACHING PRESS INC100300296808 596.57 
CREIGHTON UNIVERSITY026950296809 750.00 
CROSS COUNTRY SEMINARS INC.130703296810 189.00 
CROUCH RECREATIONAL DESIGN INC134039296811 1,775.00 
PATRICIA A CRUM109021296812 185.10 
CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER LLC027300296813 314.30 
CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC027345296814 48.28 
CHERYL A CURTIS136988296815 86.13 
FRANCES A DABBS136742296817 10.76 
JEAN T DAIGLE-ROSE132671296818 205.62 
DAILY RECORD131003296819 93.91 
DALTILE CORPORATION032140296820 981.18 
JEROME DARTMANN136391296821 27.58 
DATA CAL130516296822 312.45 
HEATHER L DAUBERT135099296823 282.62 
WILLIAM DAUGHTRIDGE136517296824 47.06 
INA M DAVIS032236296825 38.20 
PAMELA M DAVIS032246296826 118.75 
CHERYL R DECKER032497296827 69.61 
DEFFENBAUGH INDUSTRIES107469296829 13,997.37 
DEMCO INC032800296830 107.19 
DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY032872296831 216.01 
EVA DENTON136316296832 38.31 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ROBERTA E DEREMER133009296833 25.38 
DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS NEBRASKA INC137024296834 2,931.83 
DIAMOND MARKETING SOLUTIONS133968296835 895.81 
DICK BLICK CO099220296836 562.20 
JOHN D DICKEY132750296837 53.93 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473296838 20.00 
DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY099552296839 178.27 
DISCOVERY EDUCATION134899296841 87.50 
DIVISION FOR EARLY CHILDHOOD134248296842 505.00 
SARAH DOBEL134066296843 100.00 
MATTHEW L DOMINY135973296844 21.76 
AMBER J DOOLITTLE134086296845 59.96 
JAY R DOSTAL135650296846 67.64 
DOSTALS CONSTRUCTION CO INC130648296847 1,450.00 
DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DIST.28-0001130908296852 733,343.43 
DOUGLAS/SARPY EXTENSION SERVICE132341296853 120.00 
DRUMMOND AMERICAN CORPORATION034109296854 727.86 
SUSAN M DULANY135689296855 106.17 
EAGLE SOFTWARE INC,131740296857 1,613.00 
EASTERN NE HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY036520296858 16,614.00 
ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO052370296859 259.19 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525296860 144,083.88 
EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION SKILLS INC101277296861 3,125.00 
MARY L EHLERS038025296862 50.31 
EHLY'S DECORATING, INC.107980296863 224.00 
REBECCA S EHRHORN133823296865 523.86 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & EQPT CO038100296869 5,984.70 
ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.038140296870 1,871.19 
JUDY A ELLEDGE136383296871 21.11 
WARREN K ELTISTE038217296872 164.38 
EMBARCADERO TECHNOLOGIES INC.131966296873 1,635.00 
ENGINEERED CONTROLS INC132066296874 5,071.82 
ESCHENBACH133895296876 156.24 
TED H ESSER109066296877 206.74 
ETA/CUISENAIRE035610296878 1,149.54 
JOHN T FABRY106735296879 279.26 
NATALIE FECH136451296881 65.00 
FEDERAL EXPRESS040450296882 631.35 
ALICIA C FEIST131826296883 163.51 
STEVE FELICI133565296884 33.35 
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC040537296885 635.07 
FERRELLGAS106956296886 67.32 
JOSHUA P FIELDS136320296887 356.99 
FILTER SHOP INC133919296888 2,544.16 
BETH L FINK132001296889 265.28 
ESTELLA FINN136031296890 205.81 

14



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
FIRST BANK RICHMOND, NA134304296891 1,824.10 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK TRUST DEPT040902296892 700.00 
FISHER SCIENTIFIC040919296893 113.03 
ABBY FITCH136494296894 50.00 
FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC041086296895 47.50 
FOLLETT EDUCATIONAL SERVICES041098296897 236.25 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100296898 4,649.66 
KENNETH J FOSSEN041146296899 61.95 
PATRICIA D FRANCK136207296900 51.08 
PARK UNIVERSITY ENTERPRISES INC073721296901 278.00 
SHARON A FREEMAN041461296902 73.59 
NONNIE M FRENZER130082296903 152.90 
SCHOOL SPECIALITY INC041530296904 173.60 
AMY J FRIEDMAN041543296905 136.10 
FSH COMMUNICATIONS LLC135031296906 368.19 
FAMILY TIME COMPUTING133779296907 40.90 
FUCHS MACHINERY INC134402296908 495.00 
GARTNER & ASSOCIATES CO, INC.131565296909 363.06 
GAYLORD BROTHERS INC043900296910 294.66 
TAMMY GEBHART106894296911 139.98 
GLASSMASTERS INC106660296912 1,309.21 
GOPHER/PLAY WITH A PURPOSE044891296913 4,634.32 
KAREN A GORDON044896296914 41.65 
JASON C GOSNELL134868296915 33.93 
KAREN GOUGHNOUR133570296916 33.35 
GOVCONNECTION INC132152296917 500.00 
GP DIRECT043609296918 1,039.23 
GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY044950296919 1,130.70 
SANDY REIMERS099641296920 223.00 
KATHERINE A GRAY044965296921 149.17 
JANET L GRIERSON134133296922 15.15 
GRIZZLY INDUSTRIAL INC102204296923 195.65 
DENISE M GROVE134637296924 12.27 
CANDRA R GUENTHER135016296925 81.95 
KATHLEEN A GUINANE045310296926 36.27 
GUSTAVE A LARSON COMPANY132938296927 1,265.84 
CARI J GUTHRIE132287296928 167.95 
TIVOLI HOTEL LLC136821296930 178.00 
HANCOCK FABRICS101931296931 247.44 
JAMES R HANLON136805296932 171.99 
HAPPY CAB COMPANY INC047853296934 13,060.15 
HARCOURT INC047855296935 3,185.87 
HARLAND TECHNOLOGY SERVICES131353296936 1,536.00 
ANNE HARLEY137019296937 12.75 
LESLEY A HARRISON-ROLAND135821296938 71.60 
JEAN M HASTINGS136458296939 42.93 

15



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
HD SUPPLY CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY LTD133663296940 399.99 
MARVCO ENTERPRISES INC135990296941 436.86 
HEARTLAND FOUNDATION048475296942 30,140.00 
MARGARET HEBENSTREIT PT108273296943 154.44 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517296944 132.30 
DAVID C HEMPHILL108478296946 27.14 
OMAHA ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY101881296947 396.00 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423296948 11,483.70 
HIGHSMITH COMPANY INC048710296950 -250.82 
DUSTIN HILL134662296951 175.00 
SUZANNE J HINMAN048840296952 436.97 
CAMILLE H HINZ048845296953 40.65 
HMS BROWN BAGGERS045329296954 188.75 
HOB-LOB LIMITED PARTNERSHIP048940296955 31.83 
LINDA D HORTON095520296956 421.20 
HOSIER REFRIGERATION SUPPLY INC049440296957 204.72 
VICTORIA L HOSKOVEC136336296958 67.28 
HOUGHTON MIFFLIN COMPANY049650296959 3,115.31 
MATTHEW D HUBER135874296961 120.00 
HUSKER MIDWEST PRINTING101032296962 1,118.46 
KARA L HUTTON130283296963 19.07 
HY-VEE INC133397296964 1,572.01 
HY-VEE INC049850296965 725.07 
IDEAL PURE WATER051573296966 131.00 
CARMEN L WORWICK136459296969 425.00 
INTERNATIONAL READING ASSOC052150296972 69.00 
INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER102958296973 537.56 
IPARADIGMS LLC132627296974 900.00 
J.A. SEXAUER101991296975 1,666.44 
J.W. PEPPER & SON INC.100928296976 203.99 
CHRISTINE A JANOVEC-POEHLMAN131157296977 112.14 
HANNELORE W JASA054240296978 49.19 
JSDO I LLC136953296979 226.74 
JELD WEN MILLWORK132015296980 1,837.93 
DEBBIE A JENKINS133059296981 145.43 
JENSEN TIRE COMPANY133037296983 2,311.03 
JIFFY SUPPLY131457296984 54.50 
JANET L JIZBA130834296985 52.86 
STEVEN K JOEKEL054448296986 388.44 
SHARON KIM H JOHANSEN107039296987 23.40 
DESIREE K JOHN135999296988 104.53 
JOHNSON CONTROLS INC130994296989 1,589.00 
JOHNSON HARDWARE COMPANY054500296990 263.50 
EMILY M JOHNSON137182296991 9.65 
KELLY L JOHNSON136317296992 42.70 
MELINDA C JOHNSON107905296993 21.23 

16



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
NANCY A JOHNSTON059573296994 26.73 
JOHNSTONE SUPPLY054630296995 351.16 
ALINE R JONES020316296996 27.37 
JOSEPHSON INSTITUTE OF ETHICS109138296998 138.74 
JP COOKE COMPANY026300296999 136.28 
KYLE A JURGENS135815297000 61.42 
KAPLAN EARLY LEARNING CO056215297001 261.54 
KARCHER FLOOR CARE INC134194297002 1,067.93 
CATHERINE A KEISER132265297003 121.68 
SUSAN L KELLEY132272297004 27.85 
KELVIN ELECTRONICS056276297005 395.00 
DENNIS F KIMBERLIN132676297007 350.00 
DIANE L KINNEY106203297008 105.14 
BETTY H KLESITZ056770297011 46.80 
JANET L KLOSTERMANN137144297012 27.96 
MICHELLE M KLUG132264297013 42.00 
DEBORAH S KOLC056905297015 215.00 
KRISTEN KOSELUK137191297016 100.00 
KUBAT PHARMACY/HEALTHCARE133923297018 224.00 
AMANDA J KUNES109033297020 695.51 
CHRISTINA A LAGRONE137010297021 130.45 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755297022 1,976.22 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217297023 1,052.23 
LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES135257297024 281.97 
LORENE M LARSEN121124297026 61.77 
DENISE A LARSON135688297027 74.29 
JILL C LAVENE109816297028 52.88 
KWOHWA HARRY LEE136042297029 54.68 
JACEN D LEFHOLTZ108450297030 113.84 
LEGO EDUCATION NORTH AMERICA106469297031 2,687.83 
LIBRARY VIDEO COMPANY059380297032 66.85 
LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC059470297033 750.00 
LINCOLN PUBLIC SCHOOLS099395297034 200.00 
LINGUISYSTEMS, INC.059577297035 841.65 
LINWELD INC059560297036 1,710.48 
KRAIG J LOFQUIST133758297037 326.52 
AMY R LONG137181297038 39.78 
STACY L LONGACRE059866297039 286.80 
LOOSE IN THE LAB INC136858297040 195.00 
JON T LOPEZ131141297041 360.31 
TRACY M LOUCKS136404297042 49.04 
LOVELAND LAWNS060100297044 25,990.00 
LOVELESS MACHINE & GRINDING060111297045 34.00 
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC131397297046 373.63 
ZACHARY B LOWE136319297047 43.87 
BRYAN A LUBBERS060121297048 79.00 

17



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
LUCKS MUSIC LIBRARY INC060125297049 116.50 
NATASHA E LUDWIG134568297050 41.18 
LYMAN-RICHEY CORPORATION060155297051 868.23 
LYMM CONSTRUCTION CO.131586297052 6,610.00 
MACK PRINTING133980297053 112.50 
MACKIN BOOK COMPANY099321297054 6,670.92 
LUCY MADSEN106949297055 113.24 
MAKEMUSIC INC132556297056 159.90 
KAREN M MARBLE137007297057 157.36 
MARCO PRODUCTS INC063920297058 107.58 
MARKERBOARD PEOPLE101167297059 308.88 
SUSAN N MARLATT133505297060 424.78 
DAWN M MARTEN133201297061 65.70 
MATHEMATICAL OLYMPIADS099328297062 89.00 
MAX I WALKER108052297063 379.00 
MCGRAW-HILL COMPANIES063349297065 70.24 
RYE L MCINTOSH137014297066 70.38 
ALBERT G MCKAIN063361297067 60.54 
KRISTEN L MCKENNEY135153297068 111.35 
ELLEN J MCNEMAR136386297069 72.54 
RENE J MCQUINN109819297070 21.70 
MECHANICAL SALES INC.064260297071 3,680.50 
MEDICAL TECHNOLOGIES INC101274297072 104.85 
PATRICIA A MEEKER121126297073 34.98 
SAMANTHA MEISTER134256297074 100.00 
SUZANNE MELLIGER133998297075 57.19 
KORRINDA MENDEZ136314297076 142.38 
METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC064600297077 2,934.00 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK133403297079 6,987.37 
TERRY MATTHEW MEYER137183297080 167.47 
MID-PLAINS INSULATION132113297081 12,657.00 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870297082 684.68 
MIDWEST METAL WORKS INC064950297083 289.25 
MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION INC065233297084 847.89 
MIDWEST WOODWORKERS,  INC.065326297085 399.00 
KIM R MIKOS131187297086 42.41 
JULIE A MILKS135398297087 123.43 
MILLARD DRYWALL SERVICES, INC.065300297088 79.84 
MILLARD LUMBER INC065400297089 485.82 
MILLARD SCHOOLS ADMIN ACTIVITY FUND065410297090 266.75 
MILLER ELECTRIC COMPANY131328297091 360.00 
MINDWARE100316297092 124.15 
LILIANA J MIRANDA-ROBLES136190297093 216.55 
MLCS LTD136960297094 350.35 
MODERN SOUND PICTURES, INC.065950297095 9,175.00 
KAREN F MONTGOMERY066083297096 46.68 

18



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
JUNE E MORRISSEY066137297098 84.36 
KIMBERLY MORSS137192297099 100.00 
DONITA L MOSEMAN132491297100 65.70 
MOUNTAIN PLAINS RRC USU133945297101 300.00 
MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO063150297102 1,461.04 
SUZANNE MUELLER135332297103 15.81 
MURPHY TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT CO133712297104 549.17 
TERESA R MURRAY137017297105 24.86 
MUSIC THEATRE INTERNATIONAL100883297106 4,872.50 
DARREN D MYERS131395297107 159.71 
CYNTHIA D NABITY067030297108 37.06 
NASCO067000297109 1,231.97 
NATIONAL ASSOC OF SECONDARY067253297111 295.00 
NATIONAL CENTER FOR YOUTH ISSUES106499297112 1,367.86 
NATIONAL SAFETY COUNCIL132854297113 640.00 
NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOC067910297114 1,500.00 
NATIONAL SCIENCE TEACHERS ASSOC068020297115 558.00 
NCS PEARSON INC130548297116 1,030.75 
NCS PEARSON INC130548297117 7,170.37 
NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC068334297118 3,577.01 
NEBRASKA COUNCIL OF SCHOOL068415297120 180.00 
NEBRASKA COUNCIL ON ECON ED/SMG068400297121 12.00 
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION068440297122 60.00 
NEBRASKA EDUCATIONAL MEDIA ASSN069678297123 640.00 
NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC068445297124 328.00 
NEBRASKA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION099750297125 458.50 
NEBRASKA MUSIC EDUCATORS ASSOC068463297126 600.00 
NEBRASKA PRINTING CENTER068466297127 1,809.83 
NEBRASKA SAFETY CENTER134231297128 300.00 
NEBRASKA SCIENTIFIC068684297129 968.55 
NEBRASKA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT068801297130 200.00 
MICHAEL L NEEMANN068951297131 67.27 
ROBIN K NELSON069060297132 23.68 
NEWSWEEK INC099374297133 20.00 
CAROL C NEWTON069099297134 38.55 
LYNNE NEWVILLE069561297135 45.04 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843297136 17,875.72 
NIMCO INC067013297137 102.81 
NUTS & BOLTS INC069945297139 6.38 
KELLY R O'TOOLE133368297140 47.38 
ANNE M OETH050042297141 150.93 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013297145 33,881.71 
OFFICE MAX #521101147297146 280.54 
OH-K FAST PRINT107192297147 937.50 
OHARCO DISTRIBUTORS070245297148 70.72 
OMAHA TRACTOR, INCORPORATED071024297150 495.79 

19



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
OMAHA TRUCK CENTER INC071025297151 282.49 
OMAHA WORLD HERALD  (EDUC)071053297152 75.69 
ONE SOURCE133850297153 1,248.00 
RICHARD PIDCOCK137137297154 166.00 
OREGON STATE UNIVERSITY136520297155 33.00 
ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY071138297156 305.83 
ORIZON CPAS LLC132146297157 40,950.00 
MARY M OSTERLOH130092297158 98.04 
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY107193297159 310.10 
OVERHEAD DOOR COMPANY OMAHA071190297160 73.00 
GEORGE PARKER137015297162 140.40 
ANDREA L PARSONS132006297163 144.49 
PASCO SCIENTIFIC099244297164 941.00 
ANGELO D PASSARELLI108098297165 208.26 
TRACI L PATZNER134918297166 80.00 
PAXTON PATTERSON LLC071850297167 26.30 
PAYFLEX SYSTEMS USA INC071891297168 4,665.00 
PBS VIDEO071305297169 79.84 
PAULA A PEAL071947297170 11.70 
PEARSON/HARCOURT ASSESSMENT INC133487297171 775.78 
PEGLER-SYSCO FOOD SERVICE CO099302297172 176.86 
HEIDI T PENKE107783297173 31.59 
PENN STATE INDUSTRIES135385297174 127.40 
PEOPLES EDUCATION INC.072140297175 143.55 
PERFECTION LEARNING CORP.072200297176 63.75 
PETCO ANIMAL SUPPLIES STORES INC136724297177 53.38 
ANGELA J PETERSON137009297178 33.05 
KYLE PETERSON137184297179 157.00 
VICKY L PETERSON134365297180 214.11 
STACI M PETTIT136390297181 109.69 
PHI DELTA KAPPA072400297182 30.00 
PHONAK LLC136250297183 502.48 
MARY J PILLE130721297184 200.66 
PITSCO INC072760297185 40.80 
PPG ARCHITECTURAL FINISHES INC108071297186 51.71 
PLAYTIME EQUIPMENT & SCHOOL SUPPLY072850297187 29.98 
POSITIVE PROMOTIONS INC079051297189 139.80 
PRAIRIE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY073210297190 0.00 
MAUREEN R PREBLE107910297192 115.24 
PREMIER AGENDAS INC072349297193 577.94 
PRENTKE ROMICH COMPANY132269297194 302.19 
CYNTHIA L PRESTON135569297195 94.47 
PRESTWICK HOUSE INC101663297196 177.10 
PRIMARY CONCEPTS102423297197 1,341.95 
PRIMEX WIRELESS INC133745297198 518.79 
PRO-ED INC073427297199 1,806.20 

20



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
PROGRESS PUBLICATIONS073610297200 638.40 
PROTEX CENTRAL INC132713297202 385.00 
PSI GROUP-OMAHA073040297203 20,000.00 
PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT073840297204 760.97 
QUILL CORP077750297205 26.04 
QWEST090673297206 111.91 
RABKIN & ASSOCIATES INC135861297207 3,574.20 
RACHEL & ASSOCIATES132533297208 247.12 
RADIOSHACK CORP099219297209 221.25 
RALSTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS078250297210 51,488.50 
LISA M RANDS137118297211 94.77 
RONDA S RANKIN135838297212 140.00 
KAMELA RANMANZAI137109297213 33.35 
BETHANY B RAY109810297214 215.28 
REALLY GOOD STUFF INC100642297216 152.80 
REBECCA SNYDER SPEECH SERVICES132808297217 540.00 
RECREATION SUPPLY COMPANY INC078676297218 190.00 
RED GATE SOFTWARE LTDF03031297219 2,398.39 
DEIDRE REEH135690297220 11.23 
MICAH REEVES137193297221 50.00 
JENNIFER L REID134858297222 115.94 
RESEARCH IN MOTION CORPORATION135118297223 2,841.70 
KIMBERLI R RICE109192297224 116.53 
KAREN RICHTER079162297225 26.09 
PATRICIA A RITCHIE079198297227 84.24 
RIVERSIDE TECHNOLOGIES INC136847297228 2,871.30 
ROBERT HALF MANAGEMENT RESOURCES136252297229 10,428.75 
DALE H ROBINSON079295297230 339.30 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310297231 627.24 
JOAN E ROGERT137006297233 44.23 
LINDA A ROHMILLER134882297234 34.75 
BRITTANY A ROM134990297235 140.40 
EILEEN A RONCI134081297236 242.19 
ROOFING SOLUTIONS INC134824297237 1,900.00 
ROSENBAUM ELECTRIC INC079440297239 10,062.96 
BARBARA L ROTHENBERG130747297240 22.34 
JEAN M RUCHTI072286297241 212.58 
MARGARITA RUEB136033297242 13.80 
RURAL METRO MEDICAL SERVICES133572297243 1,428.00 
CHRISTIE RUSHENBERG134257297244 135.00 
REE ENTERPRISES INC137098297245 350.16 
KATHRYN  I RYAN130477297246 69.03 
RYDIN DECAL103137297247 717.37 
S & W FENCE COMPANY079685297248 225.00 
SAFEWAY TRANSPORTATION LLC136533297250 18,202.30 
LEONARD E SAGENBRECHT081495297251 128.52 

21



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
JEFFREY A SALBERG081604297252 62.01 
SAMMONS PRESTON ROLYAN073300297253 94.85 
JOAN M SANDERS081640297254 156.78 
KIMBERLEY K SAUM-MILLS081725297255 78.86 
SAX ARTS & CRAFTS INC081800297256 101.28 
BRENT J SCHADE109806297257 26.33 
SCHEMMER ASSOCATES INC081880297258 4,339.12 
KELLI J SCHINSTOCK106432297259 77.22 
SHELLEY L SCHMITZ137012297260 43.17 
SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES082140297261 260.95 
SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY135488297262 28.14 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350297263 324.24 
SCHOOLDUDE.COM INC136098297265 6,762.60 
SCHOOLMASTERS099808297266 138.29 
CLAUDIA K SCHULTE082395297268 211.18 
SEARCH INSTITUTE130851297269 75.80 
KIMBERLY A SECORA082905297270 79.56 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765297271 221,759.63 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765297272 3,038.88 
SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC082910297273 6,574.51 
STAN J SEGAL108161297274 41.35 
KELLY M SELTING082941297275 128.70 
SHARED MOBILITY COACH INC133498297276 5,303.25 
AMY L SHATTUCK109800297277 148.99 
SHIFFLER EQUIPMENT SALES, INC.083188297279 467.13 
JULIA A SHIPP137008297281 27.02 
SIEMENS BUILDING TECHNOLOGIES INC.131887297282 1,326.74 
SIGNAL MEDIA PUBLISHERS103144297283 185.90 
SIMPLEXGRINNELL083400297284 119.51 
SIMPLICITY PATTERN COMPANY083451297285 39.90 
JULIA C SINIARD136137297286 96.70 
SKAR ADVERTISING133949297287 5,815.09 
SKILLPATH SEMINARS083542297288 298.00 
SMILE MAKERS, INC.099592297289 103.72 
ELIZABETH K SMITH133211297291 64.21 
WHITNEY SMITH136487297292 50.00 
CHARLENE S SNYDER107093297293 33.70 
SOCIAL STUDIES SCHOOL SERVICE083950297294 581.77 
SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES101476297295 84,920.43 
SOFTCHOICE CORPORATIONF03032297296 404.00 
SOLIANT HEALTH137035297297 6,017.40 
SOLUTION TREE LLC067688297298 153.75 
LYON FINANCIAL SERVICES130722297299 2,902.01 
ANNE SORENSEN136434297300 42.35 
JANICE D SORENSEN135408297301 110.72 
CAROL A SOUKUP084064297302 7.02 

22



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SOUTH OMAHA TERMINAL WAREHOUSE CO084081297303 853.80 
SOUTHSIDE PLUMBING LLC133954297304 500.00 
SPORTIME084326297305 316.60 
AMY ST AMOUR109836297306 145.08 
STANDARD STATIONERY SUPPLY CO084415297307 889.80 
STANFORD PROGRAM INTERNATIONAL137005297308 71.90 
TRACY L STAUFFER084491297311 75.46 
JESIKA R STEIN137185297312 137.00 
JEANNE STICKNEY137117297314 78.55 
CYNTHIA F STIGGE084630297315 38.25 
KENNETH STOBBE135211297316 33.35 
CLAUDIA P SUCHA135744297318 114.51 
BRAD D SULLIVAN109822297319 43.29 
SUNDERLAND BROTHERS COMPANY084907297320 563.71 
SUNGARD PUBLIC SECTOR PENTAMATION133207297321 1,875.00 
SUPER DUPER INC084930297322 66.95 
SUPER SAVER #20102869297323 893.95 
JAMES V SUTFIN084959297324 182.69 
CARRIE A SWANEY137011297325 204.16 
JAMES D SWITZER132417297326 28.08 
JOHN P SWOBODA134987297327 313.55 
TARGET088654297328 369.03 
DRAPHIX, LLC103050297329 146.00 
CHILDCRAFT EDUCATION CORPORATION132962297330 27.99 
TENNANT SALES & SERVICE COMPANY133969297331 510.36 
KELLY M THIELEN137186297332 152.28 
TERENCE J THIELEN135066297333 21.06 
ANNETTE J THOMAS136381297334 28.67 
NANCY C THORNBLAD107959297335 131.74 
JANE E THORSON137018297336 26.33 
THREE B'S SAW & TOOL INC136300297337 153.08 
LAURIE R THROCKMORTON134962297338 145.00 
STEVE D THRONE135006297339 111.73 
A GERALD TIEGER089318297340 27.02 
GREGORY E TIEMANN132493297341 99.45 
TIME FOR KIDS099272297343 102.50 
MIRWAIS TOOKHI136407297344 56.68 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446297345 16,219.11 
TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES132138297346 528.26 
AMERICAN STANDARD INC106364297347 1,500.00 
TRI-V TOOL & MFG. CO.089765297348 1,200.00 
MARIELA J TRIBULATO135247297349 77.49 
KIMBERLY P TRISLER107719297350 15.79 
TRITZ PLUMBING, INC.106493297351 1,445.40 
DONNA R TROMBLA136110297352 28.43 
LYNNE A TRUMAN132268297353 49.14 

23



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
TY'S OUTDOOR POWER & SERVICE INC135505297354 364.17 
JEAN R UBBELOHDE131819297355 928.84 
UNISOURCE090678297356 7,059.35 
UNITED EQUIPMENT SERVICES CO INC109861297357 7,162.50 
UNIVERSITY OF NE AT LINCOLN100096297358 573.09 
UNIVERSITY PUB, INC.090900297359 660.00 
UPSTART090973297360 97.26 
US POSTAL SERVICE090625297361 360.00 
VALA'S PUMPKIN PATCH132117297362 247.00 
VAL LTD091040297363 544.71 
VERNE SIMMONDS COMPANY083340297364 2,231.88 
VERNIER SOFTWARE & TECHNOLOGY LLC092280297365 322.00 
JENNIFER L VEST136318297366 109.98 
VISITING NURSES HEALTH SERVICES130676297368 1,725.00 
VOCATIONAL BIOGRAPHIES INC102529297369 316.00 
VORT CORPORATION092602297370 56.95 
KAREN WAGONER137187297371 224.78 
WALKER TIRE INC092834297372 1,372.93 
WALL STREET JOURNAL099379297373 264.00 
JOY J WALLAR137194297374 60.00 
BARBARA N WALLER093008297375 75.52 
KRISTINE M WARD131817297378 85.41 
WARD'S NATURAL SCIENCE EST LLC093650297379 988.53 
DARCY N WARNER136313297380 56.74 
WATER ENGINEERING, INC.093765297381 2,788.29 
MARIA T WEAVER134979297382 21.70 
WEEKLY READER CORPORATION093976297383 373.05 
BECKY S WEGNER093978297384 107.57 
JESSICA WELLS134943297386 15.91 
WEST MUSIC COMPANY094174297388 107.60 
CAROL M WEST107563297389 121.68 
WESTLAKE ACE HARDWARE INC094245297391 48.14 
WESTSIDE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS094650297392 128.00 
CRAIG WHALEY134658297393 331.91 
KIM WHEATLEY130510297394 68.36 
DEBBY A WHITAKER094751297395 197.61 
CHRISTINA L WILCOXEN136162297396 22.00 
TAMARA J WILLIAMS136322297399 19.07 
JOAN C WILSON095157297400 897.39 
LAURA P WIRTH137180297401 18.72 
STACIE A WITHERSPOON136323297402 238.56 
ANGELA L WITTE137016297403 151.52 
CRAIG J WOLF109073297404 49.73 
WOODWIND & BRASSWIND OF SO BEND LLC095349297406 39.93 
WOODWORKERS SUPPLY, INC.095355297407 39.44 
SUSAN J WOOSTER130716297408 71.63 

24



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
GLEN E WRAGGE095491297409 409.32 
WT COX SUBSCRIPTIONS INC100578297410 182.70 
XEROX CORPORATION  (ORDERS)101370297411 23,142.00 
XEROX CORPORATION (LEASES)095674297412 2,934.00 
JESSICA N ZAVADIL136452297414 13.45 
YUAN S ZHEN136043297415 40.53 
CHAD R ZIMMERMAN137020297417 35.98 
PAUL  R ZOHLEN136855297418 32.53 
LACHELLE ZUHLKE135647297419 53.29 
CAMBRIDGE STRATEGIC SERVICES LLC136359297421 650.41 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL065420297422 1,884.00 
CONVENTION MANAGEMENT RESOURCES INC133600297423 235.00 
CONVENTION MANAGEMENT RESOURCES INC133600297424 235.00 
PATRICIA A CRUM109021297425 77.42 
ANGELA M DIEHM133261297427 468.75 
EHLY'S DECORATING, INC.107980297428 1,973.00 
IDG WORLD EXPO131739297429 489.00 
MIDWEST CLINIC107557297430 100.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732297431 312.50 
CAROL C NEWTON069099297433 25.57 
ANDREA B OLSON137196297434 246.95 
BRUCE A PETERSON137197297435 208.26 
RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.078420297436 16,630.00 
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT081630297438 29.88 
LAURA E SCHULTE136869297439 1,500.00 
SUPPORTING EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE136870297440 16,650.00 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354297441 256.25 
XEROX CORPORATION (LEASES)095674297443 105,321.90 
AMERICAN EXPRESS011651297455 3,127.84 
AMSAN LLC069689297456 384.28 
ASCD  (CONFERENCE/REGISTRATIONS)106167297457 428.00 
TOBIN S BECHTEL137129297458 259.45 
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT019111297459 5,721.94 
BRADLEY UNIVERSITY106105297460 480.00 
PAMELA A BRENNAN130576297461 212.35 
STATE OF NEBRASKA132132297462 200.00 
CHRISTOPHER COLLING107454297463 150.00 
CONVENTION MANAGEMENT RESOURCES INC133600297464 200.00 
CONVENTION MANAGEMENT RESOURCES INC133600297465 200.00 
CONVENTION MANAGEMENT RESOURCES INC133600297466 235.00 
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731297468 155.60 
DAVID GREENBERG INC137213297469 442.00 
ANNE DORNBERG137203297473 59.99 
DOUGLAS COUNTY TREASURER033901297474 15.00 
DYNA-KLEEN SERVICES, INC.100951297475 1,660.00 
GARY G EHLERS137211297476 55.00 

25



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
HARRY A KOCH COMPANY056820297479 1,482.00 
BALTIMORE HOTEL CORPORATION137201297480 507.35 
BALTIMORE HOTEL CORPORATION137201297481 507.35 
NEBRASKA STATE BANDMASTERS ASSN108325297484 50.00 
BRIAN L NELSON107732297485 193.75 
LOUIS OSBORN137212297486 55.00 
PERFORMANCE TOYOTA OF LAVISTA132072297487 24,280.00 
MAUREEN R PREBLE107910297488 13.72 
JULIA A SHIPP137008297489 27.26 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446297490 91.00 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446297491 425.00 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354297492 156.25 
A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC010040297503 37.14 
AAHPERD011241297505 135.00 
AMERICAN EDUCATIONAL RESEARCH ASSOC134396297506 173.33 
ATS MOBILE TELEPHONE CO INC010083297507 85.02 
RAYMOND J SAVARD136956297508 2,500.00 
BAG 'N SAVE132405297509 86.06 
STEPHANIE L BECKER-KASTRUP136687297512 148.40 
BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480297513 11,639.99 
BRAD BURWELL106110297515 59.99 
SCOTT G BUTLER134237297516 120.93 
CAITLIN CEDFELDT136560297517 50.00 
ALLISON MARIE CAMPBELL137189297518 100.00 
PHUONG ANH THI CHAU137204297519 174.35 
GLEN S CLATTERBUCK025221297520 4.97 
CONNECTIVITY SOLUTIONS MFG INC133818297522 1,348.13 
CORMACI CONSTRUCTION INC132170297525 2,020.00 
MONICA M COX133002297526 30.00 
PATRICIA A CRUM109021297527 40.69 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING106893297528 61.51 
DEEP ROCK WATER130339297529 48.55 
ANNE DELUCA136493297530 50.00 
DLR GROUP INC107232297531 2,387.50 
SARAH DOBEL134066297532 60.00 
DOUGLAS/SARPY EXTENSION SERVICE132341297533 315.50 
NATALIE FECH136451297536 50.00 
SARAH FECH132862297537 50.00 
ABBY FITCH136494297539 50.00 
GALAXY CABLE INC107025297540 2,555.58 
ANN M GAPINSKI136097297541 43.45 
LORI S GRAVES134622297542 45.00 
ANGIE J HAMILTON137205297543 45.00 
HARRIS COMPUTERF3030297544 1,025.00 
DAVID C HEMPHILL108478297546 128.00 
NICOLAS A HERINK137206297547 60.00 

26



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
HY-VEE INC133397297549 266.44 
HY-VEE INC132878297550 419.69 
HY-VEE INC049851297551 1,634.54 
HY-VEE INC049851297552 31.08 
HY-VEE INC049850297553 1,031.97 
NANCY A JOHNSTON059573297555 4,479.61 
DAVID KAHM137214297556 165.50 
DENNIS F KIMBERLIN132676297557 367.50 
KRISTEN KOSELUK137191297559 50.00 
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC131397297561 113.26 
ANDREW MCGREEVY135875297564 50.00 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK133403297565 903.60 
MID-AMERICA COUNCIL BOY SCOUTS064834297566 40.00 
DEVONYE J MULLINS137052297568 45.00 
DANIEL M MURPHY066510297569 86.20 
NATIONAL COUNCIL MEASUREMENT-ED136531297570 60.00 
NEBRASKA ASSN OF SCHOOL BOARDS068343297571 1,474.00 
NEBRASKA COUNCIL ON ECON ED/SMG068400297573 24.00 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843297575 1,386.30 
OMAHA PERFORMING ARTS SOCIETY135792297577 176.00 
JENNIFER PARKER135627297579 75.00 
GEORGE PARKER137015297580 69.90 
PAYFLEX SYSTEMS USA INC071891297581 206.00 
SHEILA M PHELPS072382297582 45.96 
NIVEDITHA RAJAGOPALAN137208297584 50.00 
LISA M RANDS137118297585 46.47 
EDWARD V ROCKWELL131723297586 2.25 
LINDSAY R ROGERS135300297587 34.00 
CHRISTIE RUSHENBERG134257297588 100.00 
SAFETY KLEEN SYSTEMS INC101101297589 400.00 
ERIN SALTON137209297590 12.11 
SCHEMMER ASSOCATES INC081880297591 1,519.52 
DAVID SKOGLUND134247297593 160.00 
MICHELLE E SLAUGHTER134632297594 39.99 
WHITNEY SMITH136487297595 100.00 
JAMES V SUTFIN084959297596 24.09 
KIM M THOMPSON135212297598 45.00 
UNITED PARCEL SERVICE090242297599 222.80 
D'NETTE M UPTAGRAFT109089297600 44.41 
VAL LTD091040297601 64.63 
LINDA WALTERS131112297602 29.91 
CRAIG WEATHERS137210297603 50.00 
WESTLAKE ACE HARDWARE INC094245297605 21.97 
STACIE A WITHERSPOON136323297606 14.50 
YELLOW TRANSPORTATION INC107538297607 1,288.19 
YOUNG & WHITE096200297609 14,560.62 

27



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount

2,329,955.84 Total for GENERAL FUND
ACKERMAN ELEMENTARY13503321461 95.94 
ALDRICH ELEMENTARY13503421462 64.17 
BLACK ELK ELEMENTARY13503521463 64.60 
CATHER ELEMENTARY13503721464 30.42 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL06542021465 12.88 
DISNEY ELEMENTARY13503921466 72.60 
HARVEY OAKS ELEMENTARY13504021467 47.89 
HITCHCOCK ELEMENTARY13504121468 70.66 
HOLLING HEIGHTS ELEMENTARY13169421469 104.70 
MILLARD LEARNING CENTER13505021470 173.52 
MILLARD SCHOOLS ADMIN ACTIVITY FUND06541021471 239.29 
MONTCLAIR ELEMENTARY13504221472 145.04 
MORTON ELEMENTARY13337021473 38.86 
REEDER ELEMENTARY13504421474 82.89 
ROHWER ELEMENTARY13504621475 86.55 
WHEELER ELEMENTARY13504821476 95.36 
WILLOWDALE ELEMENTARY13504921477 71.84 
ADVANCED OFFICE INTERIORS CORP10283221478 2,140.32 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC10984321479 322.83 
OFFICE DEPOT  8413351010001321480 1,306.47 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER07931021481 197.50 
ULTIMATE OFFICE INC10284621482 87.88 
KAYLA M ADAMS13715921483 50.63 
RYAN G BISHOP13597221484 91.13 
AMANDA J BODEKER13630321485 40.50 
AUSTIN BURDEN13573621486 27.00 
C E SUNDBERG CO13161921487 12.64 
AMANDA L CASTONGUAY13699821488 50.63 
SHAWN M CASTONGUAY13699721489 91.13 
CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING10689321490 18.49 
RAFAEL DIAZ13699921491 40.50 
LINDA M DOYLE01017821492 29.84 
MARLEY J FLEMING13700021493 70.88 
FROGS INC13618621494 686.80 
CINDY L GAYDOS13096521495 2.05 
ENCORE ONE LLC13598321496 418.59 
GLASSMASTERS INC10666021497 80.00 
GRACE GREENWOOD13402421498 20.25 
RYAN J GUENETTE13700121499 30.38 
SEAN M HENDERSON13716121500 33.75 
ZACKERY A KAPFER13630421501 81.00 
TAYLOR M KIM13716221502 40.50 
NICHOLAS T KING13566821503 91.13 
ANNA KLOSTERMAN13202921504 72.56 
TROY P KOSTAL13581321505 70.88 

28



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ROWAN W LANG10222921506 139.68 
WILLIAM E LANG13203221507 119.81 
TAYLOR J MARSHALL13657021508 33.75 
CHRISTOPHER MCEVOY13318021509 70.88 
JAKE A MCWAIN-CALLAHAN13422221510 27.00 
MIDWEST DISTRIBUTING CORP.01041221511 599.00 
MILLARD MANUFACTURING COMPANY09958521512 380.00 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOL CLEARING ACCT13627921513 901.40 
MILLARD SCHOOLS ADMIN ACTIVITY FUND06541021514 365.50 
HEATH D MOORE13636621515 13.50 
RONALD A NEWTON JR13402521516 119.81 
EDRIE K PEARCE10244521517 223.80 
JUDY P PETERS13134821518 1.76 
COURTNEY K RIETZ13630621519 30.38 
DEB RINGER13090321520 45.52 
ADRIANA D ROBINSON13716421521 27.00 
LISA SADIL13134721522 7.55 
JUDITH H SCHULTZ13135021523 20.19 
TREY A SCHULTZ13700221524 50.63 
JESSICA L SHANNO13716521525 20.25 
CORNELIA A SULLIVAN09982421526 40.49 
ELIZABETH VACANTI13202821527 119.81 
BRIAN A VICARS13567421528 70.88 
AUSTIN K WILSON13700321529 50.63 

11,182.69 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

BALCON017670296731 598.00 
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.133589296781 1,888.89 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & EQPT CO038100296869 1,057.50 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100296898 -10.65 
HARCOURT INC047855296935 403.44 
HIGHSMITH COMPANY INC048710296950 105.79 
INDEPENDENT SYSTEMS INC108348296970 384.00 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870297082 2,445.69 
NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC068445297124 640.00 
WENGER CORPORATION094130297387 14,980.00 
RONCO CONSTRUCTION CO INC136676297437 24,975.00 
DONOVAN PROPERTIES LLC136245297472 1,549.34 
BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480297513 1,397.95 
BUILDING COMMISSIONING LLC133503297514 2,500.00 
CONNECTIVITY SOLUTIONS MFG INC133818297522 13,840.47 
KIRKHAM MICHAEL & ASSOCIATES INC106314297558 1,644.50 
SCHEMMER ASSOCATES INC081880297591 2,705.00 
THIELE GEOTECH INC108099297597 3,232.50 
GRUNWALD MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS INC010256297610 5,979.75 

80,317.17 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

29



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT064799296674 11,850.00 
BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480296744 14,546.35 
COMMUNICATION SERVICES INC.106902296800 844.90 
EAGLE SOFTWARE INC,131740296857 835.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALITY INC041530296904 111.04 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423296948 4,287.50 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013297145 441.00 
VIRCO MANUFACTURING CORP092323297367 1,149.65 
CONSTRUCT INC135287297523 379,489.50 
MIDWEST STORAGE SOLUTIONS131899297567 2,322.07 

415,877.01 Total for CONSTRUCTION 
FUND

BARBARA A BOGH137169296612 221.93 
LAURIE R BRODEUR020101296613 99.00 
NATALIE TIEHEN137168296640 180.00 
ASSISTANCE LEAGUE OF OMAHA NE INC137072296659 30.00 
US POSTMASTER090630296680 231.00 
FIRST NATIONAL BANK VISA106773296685 314.93 
AATSP131405296688 75.00 
ACADEMIC HALLMARKS INC010278296689 61.00 
AHA PROCESS INC132917296696 590.00 
AMAZON.COM INC107651296699 346.49 
ELIZABETH A ANDREASEN134167296708 26.63 
BUSCO INC133406296718 200.00 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646296733 378.27 
BOOKS ARE FUN LTD102043296751 11.00 
BUREAU OF EDUCATION & RESEARCH020550296765 1,335.00 
LINDA S BURKE135789296766 25.92 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431296768 7,548.00 
CALLOWAY HOUSE INC023831296770 48.90 
CAMILLES SIDEWALK CAFE134015296771 46.80 
CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC027345296814 108.90 
DAILY RECORD131003296819 7.40 
DISCOVER WRITING COMPANY101561296840 350.00 
DOUGLAS/SARPY EXTENSION SERVICE132341296853 180.00 
TONYA S DYKSTRA131153296856 5.64 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525296860 110.00 
PAMELA S EHLY132892296864 158.90 
EINSTRUCTION135425296866 6,795.00 
ADRIAN T ENZASTIGA137190296875 14.04 
HAMPTON BROWN CO INC102563296929 4,285.32 
JEAN M HASTINGS136458296939 406.35 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517296944 516.46 
BAILEY HEMPHILL135616296945 225.00 
HIGHSMITH COMPANY INC048710296950 186.51 
TERRY P HOULTON132531296960 184.50 
HY-VEE INC133397296964 41.64 

30



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
INSTITUTE FOR EDUCATIONAL051795296971 1,890.00 
ANDREA L KIDD131177297006 49.94 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755297022 1,379.67 
KRAIG J LOFQUIST133758297037 453.96 
LOVE AND LOGIC INSTITUTE INC099965297043 730.00 
MATHEMATICAL OLYMPIADS099328297062 89.00 
MILLARD SCHOOLS ADMIN ACTIVITY FUND065410297090 6.60 
JUNE E MORRISSEY066137297098 168.72 
NATIONAL ASSOC FOR GIFTED CHILDREN134953297110 660.00 
NCS PEARSON INC130548297117 1,400.00 
NEBRASKA ASSOCIATION FOR GIFTED068340297119 75.00 
NEBRASKA COUNCIL OF SCHOOL068415297120 90.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013297145 39.11 
POOLEY'S PUMPKIN PATCH INC136376297188 260.00 
PROJECT ADVENTURE INC132907297201 72.00 
READ NATURALLY102568297215 59.40 
POLLY A RODENBIKER133495297232 9.44 
SHELLEY L SCHMITZ137012297260 26.05 
SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES082140297261 64.58 
SCHOOL TOOLS LLC136976297264 51.29 
SEARCH INSTITUTE130851297269 69.85 
MICHELE L STOGDILL134654297317 462.73 
BRAD D SULLIVAN109822297319 262.40 
TARGET088654297328 119.88 
JEAN R UBBELOHDE131819297355 500.00 
VALA'S PUMPKIN PATCH132117297362 565.50 
VAL LTD091040297363 126.01 
LINDA WALTERS131112297376 36.74 
WESTERN BOWL LLC131499297390 27.00 
DEBORAH A WILLIAMS108481297398 149.57 
AMERICAN ASSOC OF PHYSICS TEACHERS135167297420 105.00 
SUSAN E NELSON135913297432 1,158.72 
KATHLEEN M GUINAN135930297478 115.21 
METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY COLLEGE064618297482 96.00 
MARGO BASSINGER134739297511 43.80 
CLEAR SOLUTIONS INC137202297521 358.98 
PAMELA A ERIXON135360297535 104.92 
BAILEY HEMPHILL135616297545 162.50 
HY-VEE INC132878297550 88.52 
HY-VEE INC049850297553 289.32 
LEE ANN M MAASS137207297562 102.00 
MARY M MCCABE133809297563 76.13 
NEBRASKA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION136431297572 14,102.00 
VICKI NOLDER135955297576 43.80 
JAMES W KUPER136739297578 603.48 
MICHELLE S SIMPSON136994297592 20.36 

31



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
DIANA L WEIS093989297604 23.93 

52,734.64 Total for GRANT FUND
COVENTRY HEALTH & LIFE INS CO136587297467 114,469.40 
MUTUAL OF OMAHA COMPANIES099045297483 108,039.52 

222,508.92 Total for 
BEAR CONSTRUCTION INC136272296739 600.00 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431296768 10,094.00 
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.133589296781 1,497.00 
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731296816 735.00 
INDEPENDENT SYSTEMS INC108348296970 110.25 
NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC068445297124 986.48 
PRAIRIE MECHANICAL CORP131835297191 36,812.00 
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS083175297278 3,499.53 
UNIVERSITY PUB, INC.090900297359 352.00 

54,686.26 Total for DEPRECIATION 
FUND

LHB INC137170296623 1,600.00 
SQUARE ONE PRODUCTIONS OF S DAKOTA137059296638 500.00 
PAUL H GULSVIG137188296684 650.00 
ACCU CUT SERVICES LLC010298296690 588.75 
APPLES & MORE A TEACHERS STORE135051296711 162.14 
NATIONAL ARBOR DAY FOUNDATION133281296717 196.00 
ABBY CHARVAT136132296785 35.00 
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731296816 490.00 
DOSTALS CONSTRUCTION CO INC130648296847 23,340.00 
ADRIAN T ENZASTIGA137190296875 288.00 
KEVIN FALCK136342296880 80.00 
FLOORS INC131555296896 5,520.00 
KYLEE HIGGINSON135702296949 40.00 
KAREN ILLG135517296967 35.00 
ELLEN R ILLG134557296968 48.00 
ABIGAIL C JORGENSEN134980296997 54.00 
CHRISTIAN KLAIBER135079297009 35.00 
COLLEEN KLAIBER133279297010 48.00 
JUSTIN A KOFOED136126297014 80.00 
ALYSON KRIZ137045297017 40.00 
LAURA KUHN137046297019 35.00 
LANOHA NURSERIES, INC.058800297025 146.20 
ELIZABETH MCGINN136364297064 35.00 
SATURNRINA LEE MORRIS137111297097 80.00 
NEAL NOGOWSKI137114297138 50.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013297145 267.98 
OMAHA SYMPHONY134051297149 756.00 
MEAGAN PAPATYI135518297161 54.00 
MILES RITCHIE137178297226 100.00 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310297231 410.00 

32



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 15, 2008

Date: 12/10/08

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
OMAHA THEATER CO FOR YOUNG PEOPLE071023297238 832.50 
LISA SCHROEDER137083297267 40.00 
BAILEY SHILLER137113297280 40.00 
BRENDON SMITH136131297290 30.00 
JAKE STAUFFER136465297309 45.00 
MARIAH STAUFFER132984297310 45.00 
STENHOUSE PUBLISHERS131099297313 63.76 
JAMES TILLOTSON137112297342 40.00 
VALA'S PUMPKIN PATCH132117297362 2,039.00 
VIRCO MANUFACTURING CORP092323297367 931.20 
JIANMEI WANG137195297377 414.00 
AMANDA WEIHL135522297385 40.00 
OMAHA ZOO FOUNDATION136401297397 144.00 
ALEXIS WONG135714297405 40.00 
CANDACE YONG135390297413 40.00 
CARLY ZIEMER136466297416 30.00 
JOHN D'ARCY032071297426 150.00 
DAVID GREENBERG INC137213297469 942.00 
DAVID GREENBERG INC137213297470 999.00 
DAVID GREENBERG INC137213297471 999.00 
FAX GILBERT PRODUCTIONS INC133500297477 350.00 
ABANTE LLC136961297504 234.50 
AIMEE BAKER136339297510 34.00 
JUSTINE COOPER135694297524 40.00 
AMANDA D DOWNING135695297534 32.50 
KAITLYN FEDER135766297538 40.00 
RYAN HOGAN136879297548 40.00 
KATIE JACOBSEN107925297554 51.00 
KEVIN KUEHL136765297560 37.50 
TREVOR NELSON136702297574 40.00 
CHAELI QUANDT135698297583 40.00 
ANDREW YORK137120297608 10.00 

44,618.03 Total for ACTIVITY FUND
LHB INC137170296623 -64.00 
SQUARE ONE PRODUCTIONS OF S DAKOTA137059296638 -20.00 
PAUL H GULSVIG137188296684 -26.00 
LAURA E SCHULTE136869297439 -60.00 
DAVID GREENBERG INC137213297469 -55.36 
DAVID GREENBERG INC137213297470 -39.96 
DAVID GREENBERG INC137213297471 -39.96 

-305.28 Total for 

3,211,575.28 Report Total               

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91





93



 
 

AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Audit Report for FYE08 
 
MEETING DATE: December 15, 2008 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF  
DESCRIPTION: Audit Report for FYE08 – To receive and file the FYE08 audit report as submitted by the 

district’s independent auditing firm Orizon CPAs LLC. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x        Discussion             Information Only                                                     .       
 
BACKGROUND: Public schools are required to employ independent auditors to review their financial 

accounts each year.  The auditing firm employed for our district for the FYE08 fiscal year 
audit was Orizon CPAs LLC. 

 
A copy of the audit is attached.  (Paper copies will also be given to board members at the 
meeting.)  A representative from Orizon Group (i.e., probably Jodi Renni) will be present 
at the meeting to address the board and answer questions. 
 
Also attached is the Letter to Management and the response to it.  These are required to be 
filed with the state department as well. 

 
 
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the board receive and file the FYE08 audit report as submitted by 

the Orizon CPAs LLC. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen (Assoc. Supt. Gen. Admin.) and Chris Hughes (Accounting Manager) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S  
APPROVAL:  

94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
To: Everyone 
Re: Response to Audit Management Letter 
From: K. Fossen, Assoc. Supt. 
Date: December 10, 2008 
 
 
This memorandum constitutes management’s response to the Letter to Management which 
accompanied the FYE08 Audit Report. 
 
Management’s responses to the two “recommendations” of the auditors are as follows: 
 

A. Response to Recommendation #1 (Suburban Schools Building Corporation): 
 

Management will prepare the formal trial balance for the Suburban Schools Building 
Corporation. 
 
 

B. Response to Recommendation #2 (Activity Funds): 
 

The issue of segregation of duties (especially at elementary schools where there is only 
one secretary) is a repeat recommendation from multiple prior years.  As noted in prior 
years, in order to satisfactorily address this issue, the District would need to commit more 
personnel time and expense to the accounting function of the schools.  Although the issue 
has been discussed, management is of the opinion that the additional resources required 
would be better utilized in providing educational services rather than accounting services.  
(This response is a repeat from multiple prior years.) 

 
 
 
 
 

143



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

Agenda Item: 2009 Summer School Proposal

Meeting Date: December 15, 2008

Department: Educational Services

Title and Brief Summer Sessions 2009 for elementary, middle school and high school
Description: students

 A brief overview of proposed location and changes for each level
 A brochure for each level

Action Desired: Approval X

Background: We propose to continue the summer school format as described in Nebraska
Statute 79-1003.01. Classes will be three hours long, in blocks of 12
(elementary and middle school) or 24 (high school) sessions.

Summer school tuition will also remain the same, as stated in policy 6750.1;
$100 for Millard residents and $150 for non-residents. Special education fee
is $95.

Recommendations: Approve proposal

Timeline: 2009 Summer School

Responsible
Person(s): Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Kara Hutton, Dr. Carol Newton, and Nancy Johnston

Superintendent’s
Approval:

144



2009 Summer Session Proposal

We propose to continue the summer school format as described in Nebraska Statute 79-1003.01.
Classes will be three hours long, in blocks of 12 (elementary and middle school) or 24 (high school)
sessions.

With the funds dedicated from the Educational Services budget, Summer School 2008 ended with a
positive balance. Based on similar expectations for cost and enrollment, tuition will also remain the
same for 2009; $100 for Millard residents and $150 for non-residents. Provided enrollment is sufficient,
specialized cluster site programs for some elementary and secondary students with disabilities will be
offered, the fee for these courses is $95. This fee structure is in alignment with policy 6750.1.

Elementary
June 9- 26, 2009 (no school on Mondays) 8:30-11:50 A.M. Black Elk Elementary

Each student will be able to participate in only one class. Classes developed last year will continue, with only a
few exceptions:

 Creative Arts and Crafts will be added for 1st grade
 Animal Habitats (combined with literature) will rotate with Books and Bugs
 Mask making will be added to Music, Movement and Drama
 Construct It! will rotate with Primarily Physics

Middle School
June 9- 26, 2009 (no school on Mondays) 8:00-11:15 A.M., 11:50-3:00 P.M. Kiewit Middle School

For middle school, we propose the same calendar as the elementary, but these students will be able to take two
classes. The academic course will remain the same as last year, although the names may have been changed.

 Reading and Writing will be Read-Write
 Math Skills Review will be Master Your Math
 6th Grade Study Skills will be Be Cool in Middle School
 7th Grade Study Skills and Reading For Pleasure will be Sweet Reads
 8th Grade Study Skills, Decision Making and Community Service will be Study Strong

Additional courses to be offered:
 Read for All, which will be team taught with a SIOP trained teacher to meet the needs of English Language

Learners as well as other struggling readers.
New enrichment courses have been added to create more interest. Curriculum will be developed and organized.

 Digital Art (Photoshop)
 Adventures in Problem-Solving (developed to meet the needs of HAL students)
 Forensics-Science

High School
June 10-July 14, 2009 (no school July 3) 7:45-10:50 A.M., 11:25-2:30 P.M. Millard North High School

To be in compliance with Nebraska guidelines and maximize reimbursement, one day will be added to the high
school calendar. All courses (with the exception of ACT Prep) will be 3 hours long for 24 days. Courses offered
will primarily remain the same. We propose adding the following:

 Cross Training I
 A counselor and a media/technology/Safari Montage position if enrollment supports the cost
 With sufficient enrollment, the ELO Social Studies course to be co-taught with a SIOP trained teacher

145



REGISTRATION FORM
Registration Begins March 12th

_________________________________________________________________________
Student Last Name First MI Millard ID

_________________________________________________________________________
Address City State Zip
_________________________________________________________________________
Home Phone email address

_________________________________________________________________________
Mother’s name Work phone cell phone

_________________________________________________________________________
Father’s name Work phone cell phone

_________________________________________________________________________
Emergency Contact Name Phone numbers
__________________________________________________________________

Health Concerns

Birth Date : _______________

K 1 2 3 4 5

Grade in August 2009 (circle)

Male Female

Gender: (circle)

__________________________

School attending next fall (09)

Ethnicity (Optional) –

___01 American Indian or

Alaskan Native

___02 Asian or Pacific Islander

___03 Hispanic

___04 Black/African American,

not Hispanic

___05 White, not Hispanic

Select Course (please choose a 2nd choice in case first choice is full)

First choice ____________________________________________

Second choice __________________________________________

Tuition: Millard Resident $100.00 Non-Resident $150.00

check#____________ Total Enclosed: : _________________

Please make checks payable to Millard Public Schools. Please return payment and

registration form to: Millard Public Schools, Don Stroh Admin Center

5606 S 147th St. Omaha, NE 68137 Questions- 715-8314 or 715-8708

___ My student has qualified for free or reduced priced lunches. I authorize access

to my child's Free or Reduced Price Lunch Application information to document eligi-

bility for the waiver of summer school tuition. (No summer school tuition will be

charged for students who qualify for free or reduced price meals.)

___ My student may qualify for free or reduced priced lunches. (A Free or Reduced

Price Application will be mailed. Return the Application as soon as possible. Your

check for tuition will be returned if the Application is approved.)

General Information

 For students entering

Kindergarten –Grade 5

 Three weeks

 Open to all K-5 students

 Fun classes in reading, writing,

and math

 Enrichment classes in music,
science, art, social studies and

computers

 Register soon!

 Summer Session information:
Kara Hutton @ 715-8708,
khutton@mpsomaha.org or
Ann King @ 715-8314

amking@mpsomaha.org

Course Hours:

8:30 AM – 11:50 AM

2009 Elementary
Summer Session

Dates:

Tuesdays through
Fridays

(no school on Mondays)

June 9 – June 26, 2009

Location:
Black Elk Elementary

6708 S. 161st Ave.

Omaha, NE 68135

146



 Regist
er soon-c

lass size is

limite
d!

 Confir
mation

of enroll
ment

sent the first
week in June.

Course Selection
Select a class based on interest or on areas of
weakness. Students will gain experience in
academic areas in preparation for the coming
school year. Kindergartners will gain experience
in school routine, following directions, working
with others, taking turns, etc. in activities
that do not require academic skills. Courses may
be combined if there is insufficient enrollment.

Summer Attendance

 Parents provide transportation

 Parents are asked to call the school office if
their child will be absent or tardy: 715-6200

Tuition Assistance

A full tuition waiver is available to students
who qualify for the Federal free or reduced
price lunch program during the regular school
year. (See registration form) Families not cur-
rently participating in the Federal lunch pro-
gram who need information about qualifying
should call 715-1433. There is no other tuition
assistance available.

Registration

 Register for the grade level your student will
attend next school year. Next years’ 6th grade
see middle school information.

 Millard resident (public & private) tuition
for each elementary course is $100. (Non-
resident $150.)

 Please complete the registration form, enclose
the tuition payment, and mail to: Kara Hutton,
Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 So. 147th

Street, Omaha, NE 68137. DO NOT SEND REGIS-
TRATION WITH YOUR CHILD TO SCHOOL.

 A $10 processing charge will be assessed for
each course registration canceled. Partial re-
fund requests must be received by 4:00 PM.,
Friday, June 5th.

Current 5th graders need to register for middle
level Summer Session classes. Registration
forms available at all elementary and middle
schools.

Kindergarten
 Kindergarten Readiness and Movement ABC’s
(This all morning class will give students experience
in working independently, sharing, taking turns, using
fine and gross motor skills, identifying colors, using
numbers, cutting, pre-reading, etc.)

Grade 1

 Reading and Math Skills

 Fizzing Liquids and Measurement

(Explore scientific reactions &

gain measuring skills)

 Simple Spanish

Grades 2-3
 Reading and Math Skills
 Lego Technics and Math Applications
 Animal Habitats - (Explore animal

homes through literature)

 Computers and the Internet
 Music, Movement and Drama
 Spanish

Grades 4-5
 Reading and Math Skills
 Creative Writing
 Math Quest (with Fermi math problem

solving)
 Music Explosion!! (vocal and instru-

mental, plus software, and art)

 Construct It! (Explore motion,
force, and energy)

 Spanish

Course Offerings 147



Millard Public Schools will offer academic and enrichment courses this summer for

students entering 6th, 7th, 8th grades.

Where: Kiewit Middle School
15650 Howard Street More Info: Kara H

When: June 9 through June 26
Tuesday through Friday

Times: 8:00-11:15 & 11:50-3:00

MORE INFORMATION:

Kara Hutton or Adina Babko
Don Stroh Administration Center

715-8708 715-8253
khutton@mpsomaha.org aebabko@mpsomaha.org

 Register soon!
 Confirmation will be sent in the first

week of June
 Lunch is available between classes
 Call 715-1470 to report absences

$$$$$$$$

Millard resident…...... $100

Non-resident…..…….$150

Mini courses:

Resident…………..…...$35

Non-resident…………..$50

 Cancellations after May 16 will be
charged a $10 processing fee

 NO refunds after classes start

Tuition assistance is available for
students who qualify for the federal
free or reduced price lunch program.

Registrations forms and payments to:

Millard Public Schools

Don Stroh Administration Center

5606 S. 147th Street

Omaha, NE 68137

148



REGISTRATION FORM Millard Student ID#_________

______________________________________________Male Female
Student Last Name First Name Middle Gender (Circle)

_________________________________________________________
Street Address City State Zip Code

_________________ ___________ ____________________
Home Phone # Birth Date Previous School

__________________________________________________________
Mother’s Name Work Phone Cell Phone

_________________________________________________________
Father’s Name Work Phone Cell Phone

_________________________________________________________
Emergency Contact Person’s Name Phone #

_________________________________________________________
Health Concerns

Tuition Fees Paid $_______________ Cash and checks only, no credit cards

___ My student has qualified for free or reduced priced lunches. I authorize access to my
child's Free or Reduced Price Lunch Application information to document eligibility for the
waiver of summer school tuition. (No summer school tuition will be charged for students who
qualify for free or reduced price meals.)

___ My student may qualify for free or reduced priced lunches. (A Free or Reduced Price
Application will be mailed. Return the Application as soon as possible. Your check for tuition
will be returned if the Application is approved.)
Feel free to call 715-8253 if you have any questions.

Grade student will be in August 2009
(circle one) 6 7 8

Ethnicity (Optional –Please check a box)
___01 American Indian or Alaskan Native
___02 Asian or Pacific Islander
___03 Hispanic
___04 Black/African American, not Hispanic
___05 White, not Hispanic

Please return registration form & payment to:

Millard Public Schools
Don Stroh Administration Center

5606 S 147th St
Omaha, NE 68137

715-8253 or 715-8708
Adina Babko or Kara Hutton

Tuition:
3 week courses: Millard Residents $100.00
Non-Residents $150.00
Mini Courses: Millard Residents $35.00
Non-Residents $50.00

Morning Course________________________

Afternoon Course_______________________

AM Session— 8:00-11:15 A.M.

6th Grade

Read-Write
Master your Math
Be Cool in Middle School—study and organizational skills for

success in MS
Prep for Pre-Algebra— must be registered for Pre-Algebra in

6thgrade

7th Grade

Read-Write
Master Your Math
Sweet Reads—learn/practice study skills with books of your
choice

8th Grade

Read-Write
Master your Math
Study Strong—encompassing study skills, organization &

individual learning styles with service learning

Select a grade level class based on the grade you will be
entering in August of 2009. Students entering 9th grade should
register for high school classes. Registration forms and
information are available at all middle and high schools.

Grades 6, 7 & 8
AM Session— 8:00-11:15 A.M.

Unplugged—beginning and intermediate guitar
Qué Pasa?—intro to Spanish and cultural exploration
Read For All—a fun way to become a strong reader

P.M. Session—11:50-3:00 P.M.

Digital Art—Photoshop
Computer and Multi-media Graphics

Additional fees due during classes for projects, field trips,
CPR training, etc.

Mini Course Offerings 11:50-3:00

June 9-12
Babysitting Basics
Forensics-hands on activities for science and lab

techniques.

June 16-19
Babysitting Basics
Adventures in Problem Solving-challenging course for

those who like math
June 23-26
Fishing
Drama

149



4 ALL

7th 8th GRDRS

6th

Fr: Millard Public Schools

SUP?
2009 SUMR

FYI

June 9-26
Kiewit Middle School

15650 Howard St. 715-1470

NTHKNO

AM-8:00-11:15PM-11:50-3:00
LNCHNBTWNSESSIONS
$$$-MillardResident$100

Non-resident$150
Minicourses
$35Resident/$50Non-resident

4NE1GOINN26th,7th,8thGRADE

FAQS
ASKURTEACHERWHAT2TAKE
CHILLW/FRIENDSONHOTSUMRDAZ
TRAINURBRAIN
3WKSOFFUN
GR8CLASSES
TUITIONASSISTANCEAVAILABLE.

GO4IT!

RegistrationandCourseInformationInside

BETHEREEVERYDAY
CALLINABSENCES715-1470
REGISTERSOON!
CONFIRMATIONSENTFIRSTWEEK

OFJUNE
CANCELLATIONSAFTERMAY16

WILLBECHARGED$10PROCESSING
FEE,NOREFUNDSAFTERCLASSES
START

MoreInfo:KaraHuttonorAdinaBabko
DonStrohAdministrationCenter
715-8253or715-8708
khutton@mpsomaha.org
aebabko@mpsomaha.org

RegistrationandCourseInformationInside

BeCool!

MillardPublicSchoolswillofferacademicandenrichment

coursesthissummerforstudentsentering6th,7th&8th

grades.

Where:KiewitMiddleSchool

15650HowardStreet

When:June9throughJune26

TuesdaythroughFriday

Times:8:00-11:15&11:50-3:00.

Tuitionassistanceisavailableforstudentswhoqualifyfor

thefederalfreeorreducedpricelunchprogram.

Registrationsformsandpaymentsto:

MillardPublicSchools

DonStrohAdministrationCenter

5606S.147thStreet

Omaha,NE68137

AdinaBabko

715-8253

aebabko@mpsomaha.org

KaraHutton

715-8708

khutton@mpsomaha.org

150



TUITION

Course Resident
Non-Resident

Single Semester/5 credits $100.00 $150.00
Double Semester/10 credits $200.00 $300.00
Non-Credit Mini Course $ 60.00 $ 90.00

High School
Summer Session

2009

DATES
Semester Courses
June 10 - July 14

LOCATION

Millard North High School

1010 S 144th St.

Omaha, NE 68154

715-1365

For Students
Entering
Grades

9 - 12

INFORMATION, REGISTRATION & PAYMENTS TO:

Don Stroh Administration Center
5606 S 147th St

Omaha, NE 68137
Kara Hutton or Adina Babko

715-8708 715-8253
khutton@mpsomaha.org aebabko@mpsomaha.org

TUITION ASSISTANCE

Full tuition waivers are available for students who qualify
for the federal free or reduced price lunch program.
Information about qualifying for this program can be

obtained at 715-1433.

Lunch Time: 10:55 - 11:25

A light lunch is available for purchase
during the 35 minute break between classes.

Vending machines will also be available to
students during the day.

REFUNDS

 Cancellations after May 8 will be charged a $20
processing fee for EACH class. (Double course/$40)

 NO Refunds after Wednesday, June 10 at 4:00pm.

 If Millard Public Schools cancels a class for any
reason parents will be offered a full refund.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION
 A confirmation letter including class schedule will be mailed

the first week in June.

 Students dropping a class after June 25 will receive a failing
grade (5) that will be recorded on their transcript.

 Good attendance is vital to success in summer school. On
the fifth absence a student is placed in failing status.

Please call in all absenses

and tardies:

Attendance line @ North High

715-1223

No
School
Friday
July 3

151



REGISTRATION FORM

_______________________________________________________________
Student Last Name First MI Millard ID

_______________________________________________________________
Address City State Zip

_______________________________________________________________
Home Phone email address

_________________________________________________________________
Mother’s name Work phone cell phone

_________________________________________________________________
Father’s name Work phone cell phone

_________________________________________________________________
Emergency Contact Name Phone numbers

_________________________________________________________________
Health Concerns

_________________________________________________________________
School to receive final grade School Complete Address (if not Millard)

________________

Birth Date

8 9 10 11 12
Circle Current Grade (08-09)

Male Female
Gender: (circle)

Ethnicity (Optional) –

___01 American Indian or
Alaskan Native

___02 Asian or Pacific Islander
___03 Hispanic
___04 Black/African American,

not Hispanic
___05 White, not Hispanic

Select Courses
7:45-10:50 ____________________________________________$_________

11:25-2:30 ____________________________________________$_________

(Double-period class)
7:45-2:30______________________________________________$ ________

Non-Credit Mini Class June 10-26
7:45-10:50__________________________________________________$_________

check# Total enclosed $

Registration Forms and Payments to:
Don Stroh Administration Center

5606 S 147th St
Omaha, NE 68137

Kara Hutton or Adina Babko
715-8708 715-8253

khutton@mpsomaha.org aebabko@mpsomaha.org

REGULAR SESSION JUNE 10 – JULY 14
Each course = 1 semester (5 credits each)

Tuition: Millard Resident-$100.00 Non-resident-$150.00

Course descriptions can be found on our website:
www.mpsomaha.org

Course Name Starting Times
Reading 9 ........................................................................11:25
English 9 – 1st Semester ................................7:45
English 9 – 2nd Semester .................................................11:25
English 10 – 1st Semester ................................................11:25
English 10 – 2nd Semester..............................7:45
English 11 – 1st Semester ..............................7:45
English 11 – 2nd Semester................................................11:25
College Grammar & Reading * .......................................11:25
Creative Writing............................................7:45 11:25
Drama..............................................................................11:25
Speech ...........................................................7:45
Everyday Living............................................7:45 .........11:25
International Foods *.......................................................11:25
Consumer’s Math – 1st Semester .....................................11:25
Algebra – 1st Semester...................................7:45
Algebra – 2nd Semester..................................7:45 ..........11:25
Geometry – 1st Semester................................7:45
Geometry – 2nd Semester.................................................11:25
Advanced Algebra – 1st Semester..................7:45
Advanced Algebra – 2nd Semester...................................11:25
Art Foundations * ..........................................7:45
Color and Design *..........................................................11:25
Physical Science in Action–1st Semester.........................11:25
Physical Science in Action–2nd Semester. .....7:45
Environmental Science..................................7:45
Chemistry – 1st Semester ...............................7:45
Chemistry – 2nd Semester ................................................11:25
American History – 1st Semester .....................................11:25
American History – 2nd Semester. .................7:45
World Geography – 1st Semester...................7:45
World Geography – 2nd Semester....................................11:25
Ethnic Studies (grade 10 & above) ........................................ 11:25
U.S. Government (grade 12 only) ....................7:45 .........11:25
Computer Tech. Applications........................7:45 ..........11:25
Sports Skills (grades 9 & 10) * ........................7:45 ..........11:25
Cross Training I (grades 9-12)* …………..7:45… …..11:25

Lifetime Fitness (grades 11 & 12)* .................7:45 ..........11:25

*Additional fees due during class for art supplies, field trips, projects,
commercial tests, study guides, etc.

Double-Semester Courses – (10 credits)
(Complete 1st semester in 12 days then 2nd semester the next 12 days)

Resident-$200.00/course Non-resident-$300.00/course

Accounting I – 1st and 2nd Semester .................................................. 7:45 to 2:30
Algebra – 1st and 2nd Semester .......................................................... 7:45 to 2:30
Geometry – 1st and 2nd Semester ....................................................... 7:45 to 2:30
Spanish I – 1st and 2nd Semester ........................................................ 7:45 to 2:30
Biology—1st and 2nd Semester .......................................................... 7:45 to 2:30

Above classes include a brunch break from 10:50 to 11:25

ELL and ELO Reteaching Classes (by invitation only – No charge)

ELO Reading ....................................................................................7:45
ELO Math ................................................................................. …... 11:25
ELO Science .....................................................................................7:45
ELO Social Studies ...........................................................................7:45
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

NON-CREDIT MINI-CLASSES
June 10 – June 26

Resident- $60/course Non-Resident- $ 90/course

Pre-Algebra warm-up (incoming 9th graders only) ......................... 7:45 to 10:50
ACT/SAT Prep ................................................................................ 7:45 to 10:50

COURSE SELECTION
Students and parents are responsible for ensuring that they register for courses
needed to meet graduation requirements. Graduation requirements and course
descriptions can be found in the Millard High School Curriculum Handbook.
Students are strongly encouraged to speak with their advisor and/or guidance
counselor about summer school course selections.

TUITION

Course Resident Non-resident
Single Semester/5 credits $100.00 $150.00
Double Semester/10 credits $200.00 $300.00
Non-Credit mini course $ 60.00 $ 90.00

 Payment must be received before a student will be registered.

 Full tuition waivers are available for students who qualify for the federal free or
reduced price lunch program.

___ My student has qualified for free or reduced priced lunches. I authorize access to
my child's Free or Reduced Price Lunch Application information to document eligibility
for the waiver of summer school tuition. (No summer school tuition will be charged for
students who qualify for free or reduced price meals.)

___ My student may qualify for free or reduced priced lunches. (A Free or Reduced
Price Application will be mailed. Return the Application as soon as possible. Your
check for tuition will be returned if the Application is approved.)

Feel free to call 715-8253 if you have any questions.

152



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 

Agenda Item: Board Rule: Human Resources 4405.3 
 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2008 
 
Department Human Resources 
 
Title and Brief 
Description: Board Rule:  Human Resources 4405.3 – Payroll Deductions - 

403 (b) Tax Sheltered Annuities and Custodial Accounts. 
 
Action Desired: Approval 
 
Background: This Rule has been revised to delete redundant provisions now 

found in the District’s 403 (b) Plan document and to add a 
provision requiring approval of a Plan document and an 
Investment Policy.   

 
Options/Alternatives 
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: Approval 
 
Strategic Plan 
Reference: N/A 
 
Implications of 
Adoption/Rejection: N/A 
 
Timeline: N/A 
 
Responsible 
Persons: Chad Meisgeier 
 
 
 
Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

153

sphelps
Text Box
KEITH LUTZ



Human Resources 
Payroll Deductions: Payroll Deductions - 403 (b) Tax 
Sheltered Annuities and Custodial Accounts 

4405.3 
 
I.  Employees desiring to participate in a tax-sheltered annuity or custodial 

account 403(b) program shall have: 
 

A. Selected a sponsoring company from the list of companies 
approved by the District; 

 
B. Completed the sponsoring company's required forms;  
 
C. Completed the District's salary reduction agreement available 

through the payroll office, at least 15 days prior to the scheduled 
payroll start date; and 

 
D. Have the sponsoring company file a Hold Harmless Agreement 

with the District (unless an executed Hold Harmless Agreement is 
already on file with the District). 

 
II.  The District Payroll Office shall have available a list of companies 

through which employees currently have tax-sheltered annuities or 
custodial accounts. New companies may only be added if there are at 
least five (5) District employees desiring to utilize the company for their 
tax-sheltered annuity or custodial account. A company will not be added 
to the list unless it has executed and filed a Hold Harmless Agreement 
in the form required by the District. Payroll deductions will only be made 
to companies whose names appear on the list. A company will be 
removed from the sponsoring company list if it does not maintain at 
least five (5) District employees with active payroll deductions. Ninety 
(90) days prior to removal from the list, written notice will be provided to 
the sponsoring company and each District employee with an active 
payroll deduction to that company. The District will not select nor 
recommend nor provide any advice to employees with respect to an 
annuity contract or custodial account in which the employees' 
contributions are invested. 

 
III. An employee who desires to contribute more than the maximum 

elective deferral ($14,000 for the calendar year 2005), shall provide the 
District such information as is needed to ensure that the amounts 

154



contributed over $14,000the maximum will qualify under the Internal 
Revenue Service rules. 

 
IV. The employee and the service provider are responsible for determining 

that the salary reduction amount does not exceed the limits as set forth 
in applicable law. The employee must agree to indemnify and hold the 
District harmless against any and all actions, claims and demands 
whatsoever that may arise from the purchase of annuities or custodial 
accounts for employees in amounts in excess of contribution limits as 
defined under applicable law. 

 
V. The employee must agree that the District shall have no liability 

whatsoever for any and all losses suffered by the employee with regard 
to his or her selection of the annuity and/or custodial account; its terms; 
the financial condition, operation of, administration of, or benefits 
provided by the company providing the annuity and/or custodial 
account. 

 
VI. Insurance and/or investment agents may not solicit business on school 

property. 
 
VII. Any employee or provider who does not strictly comply with the 

requirements of this rule shall not participate in the program. 
 
VI. The District shall adopt: (a) a Plan Document to satisfy the requirements of 

section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, as a defined 
contribution tax-deferred annuity plan of a governmental entity; and (b) an 
Investment Policy regarding the selection and deselection of funding vehicles 
and investment providers (vendors). 

 
 
 
Date of Adoption: August 21, 1978 
 
Date of Revision: February 3, 1992; June 15, 1998; March 7, 2005; 
December 15, 2008 
 
Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. § 36-213; 48-1401; 79-8,100 
The Millard Public School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, gender, marital 
status, disability, or age in its employment, programs, and activities. 
Questions can be directed to: Superintendent, 5606 S. 147 St., Omaha, NE 68137, 402-715-8200. 
Privacy Statement 
 

155



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
Agenda Item: Approval of Resolution and Millard Public Schools 403(b) 

Retirement Plan Policy Regarding Funding Vehicle(s) / 
Vendor(s) Selection and Deselection 

 
 
Meeting Date: December 15, 2008 
 
Department: Human Resources 
 
Title & Brief 
Description: Due to recent changes to federal regulations regarding 403(b) 

retirement plans offered by employers, the Human Resources 
division has been working with the District’s consultant, 
Gatekeeper, to ensure that we are in compliance prior to the 
deadline of January 1, 2009.  This resolution would approve 
the resolution and retirement plan policy regarding funding 
vehicle(s) / vendor(s) selection and deselection.  This “policy” 
is an investment policy as recommended by Gatekeeper and is 
not intended as a Board Policy.     

 
Action Desired: Approval of Resolution and Millard Public Schools 403(b) 

Retirement Plan Policy Regarding Funding Vehicle(s) / 
Vendor(s) Selection and Deselection. 

 
 
Responsible Person: Chad Meisgeier 
 
 
Approval: ______________________________ 
 

156

sphelps
Text Box
KEITH LUTZ















AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Reagan Elementary Addition 
 
MEETING DATE: December 15, 2008 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Reagan Elementary Addition – The construction of a six-room addition and a 

multipurpose room addition onto Reagan Elementary School. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x         Discussion             Information Only                                      .       
 
BACKGROUND: This issue was discussed at the last committee meeting.  See the information 

attached.  The architect (Bill Cramer) will be present at the meeting if there are 
additional questions. 

 
  
 
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: Option 1:  Use portable classrooms in place of constructing an addition. 
 Option 2:  Don’t do either construction or portables. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the architects be authorized and directed to proceed with 

bidding for the proposed construction of additions to Reagan Elementary School. 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: Immediate. 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Bill Cramer (The Schemmer Associates) and Ken Fossen, Associate 

Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL:  

163



164



165



166



167



168



169



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, Jean Stothert has served ten years as a 

member of the Millard Board of Education, and has 
maintained an unwavering focus on making decisions 
based on what is best for all Millard students. 
  

WHEREAS, Jean Stothert has provided leadership 
including three terms as President. 
  

WHEREAS, Jean Stothert has provided expertise in 
many areas including health and nutrition. 
  

THEREFORE, be it resolved that Jean Stothert is 
officially commended by the Millard Board of Education 
for exemplary service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
December 15, 2008 

170



      
 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approval to Change Board Meeting Dates in January 
 
MEETING DATE:  December 15, 2008 
 
DEPARTMENT: Board of Education  
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:   
 
ACTION DESIRED:  Approval 
 
BACKGROUND:     Occasionally the board meeting dates in January need to be changed. 
 
OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  n/a 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  To approve the recommendation to have two meetings in 
January a Committee Meeting on January 12, 2009, and a Board of Education meeting on 
January 19, 2009. 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:  n/a 
 
TIME LINE:  n/a 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:  Board of Education  
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

171



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE:   December 15, 2008 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Human Resources 
 
ACTION DESIRED:   Approval 
 
BACKGROUND:   Personnel items: (1) Hires; (2) Resignation; (3) RNI; and 

(4) VSP 
 
OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: NA 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: N/A 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 
OR REJECTION:   N/A 
 
TIMELINE:    N/A 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON:  Dr. Kirby Eltiste 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  __________________________________ 
 

172



December 15, 2008 
 
 

RESIGNATIONS 
 
 

Recommend:  the following resignations be accepted: 
 

 
1. Lisa Montemarano – Social Studies teacher at North High School.  She is resigning at the 

end of the first semester due to family responsibilities. 
 
2. Joy Post --  Special Ed Resource teacher at Neihardt Elementary School.  She is resigning 

at the end of the first semester due to personal reasons. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

173



 
December 15, 2008 

 
 

Voluntary Separation 
 
 

Recommend:  The following qualified candidates be approved to participate in the 
District’s Voluntary Separation Program: 

 
 

1) Nancy Anderson – 5th grade teacher @ Neihardt Elementary School – 11 years of 
service. 

 
2) Rosemary Barta – MEP Facilitator – 29 years of service. 
 
3) Wayne Crumbley – 6th grade teacher @ North Middle School – 24 years of 

service. 
 
4) Nick Danze – Social Studies teacher @ West High School – 28 years of service. 
 
5) Ina Davis – Special Ed MLC teacher @ MLS – 19 years of service. 
 
6) Linda Fauss – 2nd grade teacher @ Willowdale Elementary School – 30 years of 

service. 
 
7) Linda Frey – PE teacher @ Cather Elementary School – 33 years of service. 
 
8) Margaret Garagiola – 6th grade teacher @ Central Middle School – 34 years of 

service. 
 
9) Charles Gould – Language Arts teacher @ South High School – 26 years of 

service. 
 
10) Aline Jones – Special Ed Resource teacher @ YAP – 29 years of service. 
 
11) Janet Katz – Reading teacher @ Kiewit Middle School – 17 years of service. 
 
12) Deborah Korves-Gunnink – 2nd Grade teacher @ Neihardt Elementary School – 

34 years of service. 
 
13) Mary Morgan – 3rd grade teacher @ Abbott Elementary School – 22 years of 

service. 
 
14) Cynthia Nabity – Vocal Music teacher @ North High School – 34 years of 

service. 

174



15) Pamela Norlen – Social Studies teacher @ South High School – 27 years of 
service. 

 
16) Beth Reitz – Read/ELI techer at Abbott Elementary School – 30 years of service. 
 
17) Jeff Ritz – Social Studies teacher @ North High School – 27 years of service. 
 
18) Claudia Schulte – Special Ed Coordinator @ YAP – 29 years of service. 
 
19) Mark Schultze – Principal @ Disney Elementary School – 33 years of service. 
 
20) George Sefzik – Industrial Tech teacher @ North Middle School – 21 years of 

service. 
 
21) Julie Sefzik – Special Ed Resource teacher @ South High School – 20 years of 

service. 
 
22) Paul Stuart – Social Studies teacher @ South High School – 24 years of service. 
 
23) Gerald Tieger – Psychologist – 22 years of service. 
 
24) Rebecca Torrens – Special Ed Resource teacher @ West High School – 28 years 

of service. 
 
25) Katherine Weidauer – Computer teacher @ Beadle Middle School – 17 years of 

service. 
 
26) Deborah Williams – Instructional Facilitator @ Abbott Elementary School – 24 

years of service. 
 
 

175



December 15, 2008 
 

Resignation Notification Incentive 
 
 

Recommend:  The following resignations be approved to participate in the District’s 
Resignation Notification Incentive program: 

 
1) Nancy Anderson – 5th grade teacher at Neihardt Elementary School.  She is 

retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
2) Nancy Armitage – Music teacher at Kiewit Middle School.  She is retiring at the 

end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
3) Rosemary Barta – MEP Facilitator at CSMI.  She is retiring at the end of the 

2008/09 school year. 
 
4) Ellen Batenhorst – Language Arts teacher at North High School.  She is retiring at 

the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
5) Cecelia Birckhead – Art teacher at Kiewit Middle School.  She is retiring at the 

end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
6) Richard Brown – Language Arts/Social Studies teacher at South High School.  He 

is retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
7) Niki Byroad – Special Ed Multi Cat teacher at Cody Elementary School.  She is 

resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year due to relocation. 
 
8) Thomas Clark – Social Studies teacher at South High School.  He is retiring at the 

end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

9) Jackie Clarke – Instructional Facilitator at Ackerman Elementary School.  She is 
retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 

 
10) Nick Danze – Social Studies teacher at West High School.  He is retiring at the 

end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
11) Ina Davis – Special Ed teacher at Millard Learning Center.  She is retiring at the 

end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
12) Linda Fauss – 2nd grade teacher at Willowdale Elementary School.  She is retiring 

at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
13) Thea Finley – Science teacher at Russell Middle School.  She is resigning at the 

end of the 2008/09 school year for family reasons. 
 
 

176



14) Linda Frey – PE teacher at Cather Elementary School.  She is retiring at the end 
of the 2008/09 school year. 

 
15) Robert Gabriel – Special Ed teacher at Millard Learning Center.  He is retiring at 

the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
16) Margaret Garagiola – 6th grade teacher at Central Middle School.  She is retiring 

at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
17) Charles Gould – Language Arts teacher at South High School.  He is retiring at 

the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
18) Gary Griffin – Math teacher at South High School.  He is retiring at the end of the 

2008/09 school year. 
 
19) Kathy Hardenbergh – World Language teacher at South High School.  She is 

retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
20) Sandra Hansen – Early Literacy Intervention teacher at Morton Elementary 

School.  She is retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
21) Diane Hansler – Family Consumer Science teacher at West High School.  She is 

retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
22) Tahnee Horn –Counselor at Ezra Elementary and Cottonwood Elementary 

Schools.  She is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year for personal 
reasons. 

 
23) Aline Jones – Special Ed Resource teacher at the Young Adult Program.  She is 

retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
24) Kari Jorth – 2nd grade teacher .5 FTE job share (currently on a LOA) at Disney 

Elementary School.  She is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year for 
family reasons. 

 
25) Janet Katz – Reading teacher at Kiewit Middle School.  She is retiring at the end 

of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
26) Katherine Keber – 1st grade teacher (currently on a LOA) at Wheeler Elementary 

School.  She is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year for family reasons. 
 
27) Julie Konrad – Speech Language Pathologist at Hitchcock Elementary School.  

She is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year due to relocation. 
 
28) Jerilyn List – Science teacher at Central Middle School.  She is resigning at the 

end of the 2008/09 school year due to family reasons. 
 

177



29) Barbara McKenna – Language Arts teacher at Russell Middle School.  She is 
retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 

 
30) Julie Miller – 2nd grade teacher at Rockwell Elementary School.  She is resigning 

at the end of the 2008/09 school year due to relocation. 
 

31) Mary Jane Morgan – 3rd grade teacher at Abbott Elementary School.  She is 
retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 

 
32) Sarah Morgan – Language Arts teacher (currently on a LOA) at North High 

School.  She is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year for family reasons. 
 

33) Mary Morley – 5th grade teacher at Bryan Elementary School.  She is retiring at 
the end of the 2008/09 school year. 

 
34) Danna Mosser – Family Consumer Science teacher at Russell Middle School.  

She is retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

35) Michael Neemann – Math teacher at North High School.  He is retiring at the end 
of the 2008/09 school year. 

 
36) Pamela Norlen – Social Studies teacher at South High School.  She is retiring at 

the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

37) Kaye Nyffeler – French teacher at South High School.  She is retiring at the end 
of the 2008/09 school year. 

 
38) Diane Oakes – Special Ed Multi-Cat teacher at West High School.  She is retiring 

at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

39) Elizabeth Olson – MEP Facilitator at CSMI.  She is retiring at the end of the 
2008/09 school year. 

 
40) Kelly Ostronic – Science teacher (currently on LOA) at Russell Middle School.  

She is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year due to family reasons. 
 

41) David Pettit – Science teacher at Kiewit Middle School.  He is resigning at the 
end of the 2008/09 school year due to relocation. 

 
42) Lori Pick – Special Ed Resource teacher .5 FTE (currently on LOA) at Wheeler 

Elementary School.  She is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year due to 
family reasons. 

 
43) Stephanie Pithart – 2nd grade teacher at Ezra Elementary School.  She is resigning 

at the end of the 2008/09 school year due to relocation 
 

178



44) Jessica Reade – 2nd grade teacher (currently on LOA) at Black Elk Elementary 
School.  She is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year due to family 
reasons. 

 
45) Beth Reitz – Read and ELI teacher at Abbott Elementary School.  She is retiring 

at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

46) Jeffrey Ritz – Social Studies teacher at North High School.  He is retiring at the 
end of the 2008/09 school year. 

 
47) Claudia Schulte – Special Ed Coordinator at the Young Adult Program.  She is 

retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

48) Mark Schultze – Principal at Disney Elementary School.  He is retiring at the end 
of the 2008/09 school year. 

 
49) George Sefzik – Industrial Tech teacher at North Middle School.  He is retiring at 

the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

50) Vashawn Smith – MLC teacher at the Millard Learning Center.  He is resigning at 
the end of the 2008/09 school year due to personal reasons. 

 
51) Suzanne Steckelberg – 4th grade teacher at Cottonwood Elementary School.  She 

is retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

52) Mary Strasil – Special Ed Resource teacher at North High School.  She is retiring 
at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 

 
53) Paul Stuart – Social Studies teacher at South High School.  He is retiring at the 

end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

54) Shannon Swaney – Special Ed Multi-Cat teacher (currently on LOA) at Cody 
Elementary School.  She is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year for 
family reasons. 

 
55) Gerald Tieger – Psychologist at CSMI.  He is retiring at the end of the 2008/09 

school year. 
 

56) Benna Tomasello – Spanish teacher at North High School.  She is resigning at the 
end of the 2008/09 school year for personal reasons. 

 
57) Rebecca Torrens – Special Ed Resource teacher at West High School.  She is 

retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

58) Kristen Treat – Counselor .5 FTE at Holling Heights Elementary School.  She is 
resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year for family reasons. 

 

179



59) Deborah Van Fleet – Special Ed Resource teacher at Russell Middle School.  She 
is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year for personal reasons. 

 
60) Denise Waller – Business teacher at South High School.  She is retiring at the end 

of the 2008/09 school year. 
 

61) Kellie Webb – Special Ed Resource teacher (currently on a LOA) at Rohwer 
Elementary School.  She is resigning at the end of the 2008/09 school year for 
family reasons. 

 
62) Deborah Williams – Instructional Facilitator at Abbott Elementary School.  She is 

retiring at the end of the 2008/09 school year. 
 
 
 
 

180



 
 
 

December 15, 2008 
 
 

TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 
 
 
Recommend:  the following teachers be hired: 
 
1. Danette Baker – BA – Minnesota.  Montessori teacher (short-term) at Norris 

Elementary School beginning January 5, 2009.  Previous Exp:  Montessori 
Educational Centers, Omaha, NE (2007/2008); Garden Homes Montessori, 
Milwaukee, WI (2006/2007); Milwaukee Public Schools (1994/2005). 

 
2. Patricia O’Connor – BA – College of St. Mary.  Language Arts teacher at North 

Middle School for the 2009/2010 school year. 
 
3. Teri Dolejs – MA – College of St. Mary.  Business teacher at North High School 

beginning January 5, 2009. 
 
4. Jennifer Neuberger – BA – University of Nebraska at Lincoln.  Language Arts 

teacher (short-term) at Beadle Middle School beginning November 21, 2008. 
 
 

The following individual was hired on a short-term contract for the 2008/2009 
school year and has now been offered a regular contract for the 2009/2010 school 
year. 
 
1. Susan Mahoney – Math teacher at Russell Middle School. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

181



November 20, 2008
Millard Public Schools

Total Enrollment
SpEd

Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08
Elementary K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment
Abbott (3 unit) 82 66 68 68 61 68 413 1 2 411
Ackerman (4 unit) 101 97 81 85 96 94 554 3 4 550
Aldrich (3 unit) 56 50 97 70 84 68 425 -3 -4 429
Black Elk (3 unit) 82 88 97 84 99 92 542 1 5 537
Bryan (3 unit) 67 72 60 59 58 63 379 -3 -2 381
Cather (3 unit) 76 78 75 72 65 66 432 4 2 430
Cody (2 unit) 31 36 38 30 30 26 19 210 -2 0 210
Cottonwood (3 unit) 56 58 56 57 67 50 344 -1 -2 346
Disney (3 unit) 47 44 45 33 53 31 13 266 1 2 264
Ezra Millard (3 unit) 58 62 63 64 61 82 9 399 2 8 391
Harvey Oaks (2 unit) 47 45 51 50 47 46 286 0 -2 288
Hitchcock (2 unit) 21 25 29 24 24 35 16 174 0 -1 175
Holling Heights (3 unit) 64 66 65 70 66 56 4 391 3 3 388
Montclair (4 unit) 87 87 93 93 67 101 528 -1 -2 530
Morton (3 unit) 44 55 58 66 55 72 13 363 4 6 357
Neihardt (4 unit) 81 104 106 104 74 86 555 2 6 549
Norris (3 unit) 62 51 57 59 54 55 338 -2 -2 340
Reagan (3 unit) 116 99 104 82 85 58 544 5 1 543
Reeder (3 unit) 60 89 71 76 63 60 14 433 1 -2 435
Rockwell (3 unit) 51 49 52 44 45 33 21 295 1 0 295
Rohwer (3 unit) 71 79 78 79 81 63 16 467 -2 -4 471
Sandoz (3 unit) 52 53 51 54 46 53 309 1 -3 312
Upchurch  (3 unit) 77 59 47 43 35 26 287 0 0 287
Wheeler (3 unit) 96 96 100 98 79 88 23 580 -2 -1 581
Willowdale (3 unit) 53 70 70 85 68 76 422 1 5 417
Totals 1638 1678 1712 1649 1563 1548 148 9936 14 19 9917

SpEd Official 9/08
6 7 8 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 250 269 242 11 761 8 5 756Andersen MS 250 269 242 11 761 -8 5 756
Beadle MS 301 303 242 31 846 4 7 839
Central MS 251 220 259 27 730 -4 -5 735
Kiewit MS 302 290 331 3 923 -2 -6 929
North MS 246 243 241 13 730 2 -2 732
Russell MS 282 289 283 7 854 3 3 851
MS Alternative 0 10 13 23 4 5 18
Totals 1632 1624 1611 92 4867 -1 7 4860

9 10 11 12
North HS 586 579 627 616 32 2408 -17 -28 2436
South HS 518 527 486 530 21 2061 -12 -14 2075
West HS 520 535 557 498 24 2110 -4 0 2110
Millard Learning Center 0 0 25 74 99 16 16 83
Totals 1624 1641 1695 1718 77 6678 -17 -26 6704
*Millard West enrollment figure reflects  2 first semester graduates.
Preschool Preschool SPED Contracted SPED 44 -1 -1 45
Cody Early Start 10 Cody 60 Young Adult Program 55 0 -2 57
Norris 18 Disney 24
Sandoz ELL 18 Hitchcock 23 Total District K-12 21580 -5 -3 21583
Montessori - Montclair 83 Montclair 30 Total District PreK-12 22145 2 16 22129
Montessori - Norris 17 Reeder 33
Bryan 34 Sandoz 17 11/20/2008
Disney 9 Contracted 5 Elementary 9936
Holling Heights 34 Infants 78 Middle Sch 4867
Neidhardt 36 Total 270 High Sch 6678
Rockwell 36 Contracted 44
Total 295 Young Adult 55

  Total 21580
10/20/2008

Elementary 9922
Middle Sch 4868
High Sch 6695
Contracted 45
Young Adult 55
  Total 21585

Current Chg -5
YTD Change -3

21,607 21,583 21,585 21,580

19,000

19,500

20,000

20,500

21,000

21,500

22,000

Aug 08 Sept 08 Oct 08 Nov 08

Enrollment 2008-09

182



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class
Current YTD Official 09/08 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment SPED
Abbott 20 22 23 23 20 23

20 21 23 23 20 22
21 23 22 22 21 23
21

Total Students 82 66 68 68 61 68 413 1 2 411 413
Total Teachers 4.0 3 3 3 3 3 19.0 19.0
Classroom Avg 21 22.0 22.7 22.7 20.3 22.7 22 22

Current YTD Official 09/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Ackerman 21 18 20 20 24 24
19 19 20 21 25 24
21 19 20 22 24 23
20 21 21 22 23 23
20 20

Total Students 101 97 81 85 96 94 554 3 4 550 554
Total Teachers 5 5 4 4 4 4 26.0 26.0
Classroom Avg 20.2 19.4 20.3 21.3 24.0 23.5 21 21

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Aldrich 20 17 23 23 21 23
16 17 25 24 21 22
20 16 25 23 20 23

24 22
Total Students 56 50 97 70 84 68 425 -3 -4 429 425
Total Teachers 3 3 4 3 4 3 20.00 20
Classroom Avg 18.7 16.7 24.3 23.3 21.0 22.7 21 21

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Black Elk 21 21 23 21 20 23
20 23 25 21 20 23
20 22 24 21 20 23
21 22 25 21 19 23

20
Total Students 82 88 97 84 99 92 542 1 5 537 542
Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 5 4 25 25
Classroom Avg 20.5 22.0 24.3 21.0 19.8 23.0 22 22

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Bryan 16 24 19 19 19 21
17 24 21 21 19 20
17 24 20 19 20 22
17

Total Students 67 72 60 59 58 63 379 -3 -2 381 379
Total Teachers 4 3 3 3 3 3 19 19
Classroom Avg 16.8 24.0 20.0 19.7 19.3 21.0 20 20

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 C-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cather 14 15 15 23 19 23 24 23 23 24 23 23
14 16 14 24 24 23 25 23 20

Total Students 28 31 29 23 19 23 48 47 46 49 46 43 432 4 2 430 432
Total Teachers 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 21 21
Classroom Avg 14.0 15.5 14.5 23.0 19.0 23.0 24.0 23.5 23.0 24.5 23.0 21.5 21 21

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08

K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment
Cody 14 19 19 15 15 13 6

17 17 19 15 15 13 6
7

Total Students 31 36 38 30 30 26 19 210 -2 0 210 191
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 15 12
Classroom Avg 15.5 18.0 19.0 15.0 15.0 13.0 6.3 14 16

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cottonwood 19 18 18 19 23 25
17 21 18 18 21 25
20 19 20 20 23

Total Students 56 58 56 57 67 50 344 -1 -2 346 344
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 2 17 17
Classroom Avg 18.7 19.3 18.7 19.0 22.3 25.0 20 20

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08

K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment
Disney 23 21 15 17 17 17 7

24 23 14 16 17 14 6
16 19

Total Students 47 44 45 33 53 31 13 266 1 2 264 253
Total Teachers 2 2 3 2 3 2 2 16 14
Classroom Avg 24 22 15 17 18 16 7 17 18

183



SpEd Class
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment SPED
Ezra Millard 19 20 21 22 21 22 2

19 21 21 20 20 19 7
20 21 21 22 20 20

21
Total Students 58 62 63 64 61 82 9 399 2 8 391 390
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 4 2 21 19
Classroom Avg 19.3 20.7 21.0 21.3 20.3 20.5 5 19 21

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Harvey Oaks 16 22 26 25 24 23
16 23 25 25 23 23
15

Total Students 47 45 51 50 47 46 286 0 -2 288 286
Total Teachers 3 2 2 2 2 2 13.0 13
Classroom Avg 15.7 22.5 25.5 25.0 23.5 23.0 22 22

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08

K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment
Hitchcock 21 12 13 24 24 20 8

13 16 15 8

Total Students 21 25 29 24 24 35 16 174 0 -1 175 158
Total Teachers 1 2 2 1 1 2 2 11.0 9
Classroom Avg 21.0 12.5 14.5 24.0 24.0 17.5 8.0 16 18

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08

K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment
Holling Heights 21 23 22 23 22 20 2

21 22 21 23 23 19 2
22 21 22 24 21 17

Total Students 64 66 65 70 66 56 4 391 3 3 388 387
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 20.0 18
Classroom Avg 21.3 22.0 21.7 23.3 22.0 18.7 2.0 20 22

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Montclair 19 22 18 17 17 20 24 24 20
19 21 19 16 17 21 25 23 21

18 13 23 19
24 20
24
24

Total Students 38 43 37 51 34 54 49 142 80 528 -1 -2 530 528
Total Teachers 2 2 2 3 2 3 2 6 4 26 26
Classroom Avg 19.0 21.5 18.5 17.0 17.0 18.0 24.5 23.7 20.0 20 20

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08

K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment
Morton 22 21 16 19 18 23 7

22 20 20 23 19 24 6
14 22 24 18 25

Total Students 44 55 58 66 55 72 13 363 4 6 357 350
Total Teachers 2 3 3 3 3 3 2.0 19 17.0
Classroom Avg 22.0 18.3 19.3 22.0 18.3 24.0 6.5 19 21

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Neihardt 14 21 22 21 23 21
16 21 20 20 26 21
17 21 23 20 25 22
17 20 20 21 22
17 21 21 22

Total Students 81 104 106 104 74 86 555 2 6 549 555
Total Teachers 5 5 5 5 3 4 27.0 27.0
Classroom Avg 16.2 20.8 21.2 20.8 24.7 21.5 21 21

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Norris 20 14 19 20 17 20 8 21 16
21 15 19 20 17 21 13 18 18

21

Total Students 41 29 38 40 34 41 21 60 34 338 -2 -2 340 338
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 19.0 19.0
Classroom Avg 20.5 14.5 19.0 20.0 17.0 20.5 10.5 20.0 17.0 18 18

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Reagan 19 22 16 20 23 15
19 21 24 21 22 22
19 13 16 20 23 21
20 22 24 21 17
20 21 24
19

Total Students 116 99 104 82 85 58 544 5 1 543 544
Total Teachers 6 5 5 4 4 3 27.0 27.0
Classroom Avg 19.0 19.5 20.0 20.5 21.3 19.3 20 20

184



Sped Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment

Reeder 20 22 24 26 21 23 7
20 22 24 25 21 22 7
20 23 23 25 21 15

22
Total Students 60 89 71 76 63 60 14 433 1 -2 435 419
Total Teachers 3 4 3 3 3 3 2.0 21.0 19.0
Classroom Avg 20.0 22.3 23.7 25.3 21.0 20.0 7.0 21 22

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08

K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment
Rockwell 17 16 17 14 14 15 4

17 17 17 15 15 18 6
17 16 18 15 16 11

Total Students 51 49 52 44 45 33 21 295 1 0 295 274
Total Teachers 3.0 3 3 3 3 2 3 20.0 17.0
Classroom Avg 17.0 16.3 17.3 14.7 15.0 16.5 7.0 15 16

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08

K 1 2 3 4 5 Program Total Change Change Enrollment
Rohwer 24 20 20 22 20 21 8

24 20 20 22 20 21 8
23 20 17 19 21 21

19 21 16 20

Total Students 71 79 78 79 81 63 16 467 -2 -4 471 451
Total Teachers 3 4 4 4 4 3 2 24.0 22
Classroom Avg 23.7 19.8 19.5 19.8 20.3 21.0 8.0 19 21

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Sandoz 17 19 16 18 22 18
17 17 16 18 24 17
18 17 19 18 18

Total Students 52 53 51 54 46 53 309 1 -3 312 309
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 2 3 17 17
Classroom Avg 17.3 17.7 17.0 18.0 23.0 17.7 18 18

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Upchurch 20 19 24 21 18 26
21 20 23 22 17
20 20
16

Total Students 77 59 47 43 35 26 287 0 287 287 287
Total Teachers 4 3 2 2 2 1 14 14
Classroom Avg 19.3 19.7 23.5 21.5 17.5 26.0 21 21

SpEd
Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08

K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment
Wheeler 21 20 20 19 20 22 12

16 19 19 20 20 20 4
21 15 22 21 22 23 7
21 21 19 18 17 23
17 21 20 20

Total Students 96 96 100 98 79 88 23 580 -2 -1 581 557
Total Teachers 5 5 5 5 4 4 3 31 28
Classroom Avg 19.2 19.2 20.0 19.6 19.8 22.0 7.7 19 20

Current YTD Official 9/08
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Willowdale 17 23 23 21 22 25
18 23 24 22 23 26
18 24 23 21 23 25

21
Total Students 53 70 70 85 68 76 422 1 5 417 422
Total Teachers 3 3 3 4 3 3 19.0 19
Classroom Avg 17.7 23.3 23.3 21.3 22.7 25.3 22 22

SpEd
Elementary Totals Cluster Current YTD Official 9/08
Grade K 1 2 3 4 5 M-1 M-2 M-3  M-4 M-5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment
Students 1638 1678 1712 1649 1563 1548 66 75 61 53 61 148 9936 14 19 9917 9788
Teachers 86.0 81.0 80.0 77.0 74.0 71.0 9 6.0 23.0 507 484.0
Classroom Avg 19.0 20.7 21.4 21.4 21.1 21.8 6.4 19.60 20.223

SpEd Current YTD Official 9/08
6 7 8 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 250 269 242 11 761 -8 5 756
Beadle MS 301 303 242 31 846 4 7 839
Central MS 251 220 259 27 730 -4 -5 735
Kiewit MS 302 290 331 3 923 -2 -6 929
North MS 246 243 241 13 730 2 -2 732
Russell MS 282 289 283 7 854 3 3 851
MS Alternative 0 10 13 23 4 5 18
Totals 1632 1624 1611 92 4867 -1 7 4860

9 10 11 12
North HS 586 579 627 616 32 2408 -17 -28 2436
South HS 518 527 486 530 21 2061 -12 -14 2075
West HS 520 535 557 498 24 2110 -4 0 2110
Millard Learning Center 0 0 25 74 99 16 16 83
Totals 1624 1641 1695 1718 77 6678 -17 -26 6704

Contracted SPED 44 -1 -1 45
Young Adult Program 55 0 -2 57
Total District Enrollment 21580 -3 -3 21583

185



Preliminary Projections for 2009-10

Proj K 2009
Proj 1st  

2009
Proj 2nd  

2009
Proj 3rd 

2009
Proj 4th 

2009
Proj 5th  

2009 self cont
Projected 

Total

Official End-
of-Sept. 

2008 Difference
Abbott 75 79 64 70 69 56 413 411 2
Ackerman 100 98 92 76 86 94 546 550 -4
Aldrich 52 57 52 103 75 88 427 429 -2
Black Elk 80 84 87 99 80 96 526 537 -11
Bryan 65 64 69 61 62 63 384 381 3
Cather 74 79 81 75 69 65 443 430 13
Cody 35 30 40 35 29 29 19 198 210 -12
Cottonwood 55 53 57 57 60 67 349 346 3
Disney 45 47 42 44 33 47 13 258 264 -6
Ezra Millard 58 60 62 61 67 48 11 356 391 -35
Harvey Oaks 49 47 49 55 53 24 277 288 -11
Hitchcock 17 17 24 27 25 24 18 134 175 -41
Holling Heights 55 58 58 63 71 59 11 364 388 -24
Montclair 90 83 83 91 93 71 511 530 -19
Morton 62 42 57 62 66 57 12 346 357 -11
Neihardt 95 82 102 100 103 75 557 549 8
Norris 55 62 49 55 55 58 334 340 -6
Reagan 118 120 111 112 73 94 628 543 85
Reeder 70 71 100 83 95 75 15 494 435 59
Rockwell 55 46 44 48 42 40 20 275 295 -20
Rohwer 67 74 85 81 82 78 16 467 471 -4
Sandoz 60 51 55 52 53 49 320 312 8
Upchurch 80 97 59 61 48 34 379 287 92
Wheeler 100 93 100 98 100 80 20 571 581 -10
Willowdale 55 54 75 68 89 72 413 417 -4

1667 1648 1697 1737 1678 1543 155 9970 9917 53

Proj 6th 
2009

Proj 7th 
2009

Proj 8th 
2009 Proj Total

of-Sept. 
2008 Difference

AMS 254 255 275 784 756 28
BMS 305 315 301 921 839 82
CMS 237 256 231 724 735 -11
KMS 294 313 290 897 929 -32
NMS 354 249 253 856 732 124
RMS 261 292 293 846 851 -5
MS Alter 6 13 19 18 1

1705 1686 1656 5047 4860 187

Proj 9th 
2009

Proj 10th 
2009

Proj 11th 
2009

Proj 12th 
2009  Proj Total

of-Sept. 
2008 Difference

North HS 621 592 579 627 2419 2436 -17
South HS 451 533 514 487 1985 2075 -90
West HS 533 524 535 552 2144 2110 34
MLC 16 73 89 83 6

1605 1649 1644 1739 6637 6704 -67

Contracted SPED 44 45 -1
Young Adult Program 56 57 -1 3-Dec-08
District Projected Total 21754 21583 171

186



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: North Central Association (NCA) / AdvancED Report  
 
MEETING DATE: December 15, 2008 
 
DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent    
 
TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Report of the Quality Assurance Review for School Accreditation 
 
ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL          DISCUSSION          INFORMATION ONLY _XX___
 
BACKGROUND: 
For many years the Millard Public Schools middle and high schools were nationally accredited through the 
North Central Association (NCA).  A merger in 2006 combines the North Central Association with the 
Southern Association of Colleges and Schools under the name AdvancEd.   2001 we also sought accreditation 
for all of the elementary schools.  Currently all of our schools are nationally accredited by the North Central 
Association of AdvancEd, although we are just beginning the process to bring in Reagan and Upchurch.  We are 
bound to the standards of the AdvancEd.  Every 5 years an eternal team visits our district and provides each 
school with feedback on their school improvement process and how they meet the 7 standards.  We had 20 
people from Nebraska school districts and 6 from our Bench Marking Consortium school districts included on 
the team.  Freida Lange from the Nebraska Department of Education served as the chair for this committee.  An 
excerpt of the report for each school is included with this report.  A complete report for each school is available 
on the website.  The initial exit report and subsequent final reports are very positive about our work on each of 
the 7 standards.  The commendations and recommendations include district issues as well as specific building 
issues relating to each standard.   
 
NCA Accreditation Standards 
1. The school establishes and communicates a shared purpose and direction for improving performance of 

students and the effectiveness of the school. 
2. The school provides governance and leadership that promote student performance and school effectiveness. 
3. The school provides research-based curriculum and instructional methods that facilitate achievement for all 

students. 
4. The school enacts a comprehensive assessment system that monitors and documents performance and uses 

these results to improve student performance and student effectiveness. 
5. The school has the resources and services necessary to support its vision and purpose and to ensure 

achievement for all students. 
6. The school fosters effective communications and relationships with and among its stakeholders. 
7. The school establishes, implements, and monitors a continuous process of improvement that focuses on 

student performance. 
 
District Commendations: 
1. Every building in the district expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning. 
2. The use of multiple communications methods has built a sense of community among stakeholders in the 

Millard Public Schools. 
3. MPS has developed strong building and district level leadership 
4. Schools provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.   
 
District Recommendation: 
1.  Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data.   
 
We intend to use the report for improvement as follows: 

187



1. Each school will share this report with their school improvement team and will act on recommendations and 
commendations.     

2. The recommendations will also be considered when the school revisits the school site plan.   
3. Current district action plans include strategies to make data more readily available for staff and also include 

pertinent staff development to enable staff to access the data.      
 
Future Issues 
Based on recommendations and feedback from our Quality Assurance Review Team, we will be moving to a 
District Accreditation model as opposed to the building accreditation model we are currently operating under. 

 
 

 
OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Angelo Passarelli 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:                                                                  
        (Signature) 
 
BOARD ACTION: 

188



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Grace Abbott Elementary School

Erik Chaussee, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

189



Grace Abbott Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Grace Abbott Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 8 students, 4 parents, and 7 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Professional Learning Communities (PLCs), as part of the school and district staff development, improve
teaching and learning at Grace Abbott Elementary School.

190



Grace Abbott Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

191

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Ackerman Elementary School

Melissa Gilbert, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

192



Ackerman Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 20

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Ackerman Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 2 members of the
administrative team, 8 students, 6 parents, and 10 teachers. In addition, 2 Support Staff were interviewed. The team
also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Ackerman Elementary School staff expresses and demonstrates a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Interviews with parents, students, and administration confirm the commitment to student learning.  Curriculum
is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best practice. The use
of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by students help to
establish target goals/SMART goals.  Resources such as the Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac
Partners are abundant and effectively used.

When a building has student learning as the primary purpose of its existence, it is better able to allocate
resources to crucial areas needing attention.   The focus of energy, research, and resources at Ackerman
Elementary School contributes to the improvement and support of student learning. 

193



Ackerman Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 20

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Staff at Ackerman Elementary School provides a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each
student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning
other districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans from building levels
from middle school to high school or elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focus on student
needs. Each building is clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise (as a district-wide collaborative effort) the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use
the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an

194



Ackerman Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 20

abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

195

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Ackerman Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 20

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

196



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Aldrich Elementary School

Angelo Passarelli, Director

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

197



Aldrich Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 20

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Aldrich Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Director, 1 member of the
administrative team, 8 students, 8 parents, and 8 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

The effective instructional leadership at Aldrich Elementary is clearly evident and appreciated by stakeholders. 
The district’s mission of a “world-class educational system characterized by innovative and diverse
opportunities designed to challenge each student” is communicated in multiple ways throughout this building.

After four years of hard work, commitment, and dedication to continuous improvement, Aldrich Elementary is
the only elementary school in Nebraska to receive the International Baccalaureate Primary Years Program
World School prestigious accreditation.  All stakeholders are very proud of this honor and it truly reflects the
hard work that the entire community has done over the past several years to develop the PYP.  The
implementation and incorporation of the International Baccalaureate Attitudes and Profiles within the entire
school culture was observed by the Quality Assurance Review (QAR) team, and confirmed as a school-wide
effort in guaranteeing academic excellence and the development of principled young people who become active,
inquiring, and compassionate life-long learners.  Innovative opportunities and challenging programs of

198



Aldrich Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 20

intercultural understanding through guided inquiry were also shared by all stakeholders.

Stakeholders at all levels cited their pride in their school and their community as a major reason for the high
level of parent and community support of school programs and the respectful student body.  A safe,
challenging, and nurturing learning environment empowers students and allows them to develop to their full
potential.

Every building in the district expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs)
by students help to establish target goals/SMART (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Realistic, Timely) goals. 
Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation, and PayBac Partners are abundant and available, and they
are used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement) were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that have resulted in support of
bond issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of youth, which have led to improved learning and
achievement.

Aldrich staff provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning
other districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans between building levels
were carefully structured and focused on student needs.  Each building was clearly designed with the needs of
students paramount.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “benchmarking consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

199



Aldrich Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 20

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Share information through frequent verbal, written, and digital communication.

Communicating and sharing results will encourage others to follow.  Also, please share the school's excellent
Olympic Day activity on the Peer Practices website.

Improved communication will help to sustain the school's initiatives.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be done as a
district-wide effort).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and from teacher and principal interviews, concern was
expressed that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant, nor is it always presented in user-
friendly formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when charts or graphs are
provided, little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats within every building was
expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to

200



Aldrich Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 20

ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

201

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Black Elk Elementary School

Joshua Lewis, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

202



Black Elk Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Black Elk Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 13 students, 7 parents, and 16 teachers. In addition, Support Staff - 5 were interviewed. The team
also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “benchmarking consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Black Elk Elementary staff provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as
an individual.

203



Black Elk Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools (meaning
other districts), and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels
middle school to high school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building is clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of our youth, which have all led to improved learning and
achievement.

Every building in the district expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs)
by students help to establish target goals/SMART goals (specific, measurable, attainable, results-oriented, and
time-bound).  Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant and are
used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be a district-wide
collaborative effort).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed

204



Black Elk Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant, nor is it always presented in user-friendly
formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when charts or graphs are provided,
little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats in every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

205

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Black Elk Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

206



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Bryan Elementary School

Pat Rhodes, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

207



Bryan Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 20

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Bryan Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 6 students, 5 parents, and 7 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Bryan Elementary maintains a clear focus on student achievement.

Statements from Bryan Elementary teacher, parent, and student interviews are evidence that all stakeholders
understand that the school works together to improve achievement of each student, no matter what his/her
proficiency level may be.  Using Professional Learning Communities, teachers consistently monitor progress
and make instructional decisions to improve the achievement level of each student.

The commitment to increasing student achievement has resulted in increased student performance at Bryan
Elementary.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

208



Bryan Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 20

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (i.e. math nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of our youth – all of which have led to improved learning and
achievement.

Staff at Bryan Elementary provides a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as
an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools (meaning
other districts), and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from middle school to
high school or elementary to middle school were carefully structured and focused on student needs.  Each
building was clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “benchmarking consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Refine and implement plans to actively involve all Bryan Elementary staff in the site planning/school
improvement process.

Interviews with the Bryan Elementary administrator and staff showed a need and desire to ensure increased
opportunities for all staff to be involved in the school improvement process.

209



Bryan Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 20

This recommendation for Bryan is consistent with expectations of the dedicated and caring staff at Bryan
Elementary.  Ensuring involvement of all staff in continuous improvement and decision making will strengthen
understanding, commitment, and ownership of the school improvement process, therefore moving the school
closer to achieving its mission.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed
that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly forms. 
The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when charts or graphs are provided, little analysis
is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats in every building was expressed.

By improving district-wide methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can
make better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation

210

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Bryan Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 20

Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

211

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Cather Elementary School

Paula A. Peal, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

212



Cather Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 18

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Cather Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 8 students, 7 parents, and 8 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Cather Elementary School is unique in its offerings to students.  A core curriculum that is rigorous and enriched
is available, and at the same time, the traditional curriculum is an option for the students. The administration
works efficiently to meet the needs of students in these two academically diverse programs: core and traditional.

All interviewed stakeholders, including parents, students, and teachers, provided positive feedback on both
programs, individually and as an aggregate. Whether speaking of the core or traditional program, feelings of
satisfaction were expressed.

Effective leadership and a stable faculty ensure the opportunities of these two divergent programs are
understood by parents.  Students are provided a wonderful array of academic services.

Every school in the district expresses and demonstrates a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

213



Cather Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 18

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best
practice. The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals. Abundant resources, such as Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners, are used effectively.

A focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools and Cather Elementary School.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Staff provides a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other districts],
and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels (i.e., middle school
to high school, elementary to middle school) are carefully structured and focus on student needs.  Each building
is clearly designed with the needs of students in mind. 

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making

214



Cather Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 18

progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Monitor and evaluate the blending and effectiveness of the core and traditional programs as they relate to and
overlap each other.

All stakeholders voiced an awareness of the need for the two programs to work cooperatively.

To ensure the academic success and social adjustment of students, administrators, teachers, and parents must
hold both programs in equal esteem.

Revise (as a district-wide collaborative effort) the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use
the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available

215

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Cather Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 18

any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

216

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Cody Elementary School

Nicholas Meysenburg, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

217



Cody Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Cody Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 2 members of the
administrative team, 25 students, 6 parents, and 15 teachers. In addition, 1 Support Staff were interviewed. The team
also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Administrators and teachers clearly demonstrate leadership and commitment to the establishment of a climate
of high expectations.

The Quality Assurance Review (QAR) team heard repeatedly from interviews with students, staff, and parents
that high expectations are the norm in this school. The team saw evidence of quality instruction and a dedicated
and capable staff. The parents who were interviewed were extremely complimentary and proud of the
commitment of the staff, administration, and district leadership. Cody Elementary School has many parents
who choose to “opt in’ to this school. A high percentage of parents are involved in school activities. The team
saw pride and ownership of the learning opportunities for young people in this school. One teacher reported
that she could not be one of the after-school tutors because there were too many volunteers ahead of her.

A climate of high expectations results in commitment and dedication to continuous improvement by staff,

218



Cody Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

students, and parents and has a positive impact on learning and achievement.

Cody Elementary School expresses and demonstrates a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs)
by students helps to establish target goals/SMART goals.  Abundant resources, such as the Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners, are used effectively.

A focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
district.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Building staff provides a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other
districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans from middle school to high
school or elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focus on student needs. Each building is
clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations

219



Cody Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teacher ability to use the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation

220

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Cody Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

221

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Cottonwood Elementary School

Nancy Nelson, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

222



Cottonwood Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 20

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Cottonwood Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 8 students, 6 parents, and 8 teachers. In addition, Support Staff -1 were interviewed. The team
also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Every building in the district, including Cottonwood Elementary, has expressed and demonstrated a clear and
powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLC) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLP) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART (specific, measurable, attainable, results-oriented and time-
bound) goals.  There is an abundant availability of resources (e.g., Millard Educational Foundation, PayBac
Partners) that are effectively used.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

223



Cottonwood Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 20

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (i.e. Math Nights), invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  65% of the citizens in the district do not have children in the
schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that have resulted in support of
bond issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of the school's youth – all which have led to improved
learning and achievement.

Cottonwood Elementary provides a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an
individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning
other districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels,( i.e.
middle school to high school, elementary to middle school) were carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building was clearly designed with the needs of students paramount.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  60% of the district principals are nurtured and hired
from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this should be a district-
wide, collaborative effort).

224



Cottonwood Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 20

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and from teacher and principal interviews, concern was
expressed that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-
friendly forms.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when charts/graphs are provided,
little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats within every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

225

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Cottonwood Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 20

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

226



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Disney Elementary School

Mark Schultze, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

227



Disney Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 20

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Disney Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 9 students, 4 parents, and 5 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

The Quality Assurance Review (QAR) Team commends the Walt Disney Elementary School for using the
continuous improvement process to design and implement instructional strategies to improve research-based
instructional interventions to meet individual student needs, e.g., Early Literacy Interventions (ELI), Reading
Enrichment and Development (READ), Support One Student (SOS), High Ability Program, and re-teaching
rooms.

The administration and teachers shared with the QAR Team that they had used collaborative decision-making
processes to review and analyze student data and allocate resources to affect student achievement.  Parents
shared enthusiasm for, and an understanding of, the strategies being implemented.  Students also shared their
appreciation for their teachers and the responsiveness they get when they need help.  As evidenced by
statements from stakeholder interviews and through classroom observations, all stakeholders could articulate
what strategies are being implemented to address gaps in performance.  This focus has contributed to the

228



Disney Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 20

school’s increase in student performance.  A tremendous amount of pride was exhibited in the school on the
part of the staff, parents, and students.

It is by analyzing the data, determining the individual needs of each student, and establishing appropriate
programs that a school becomes great.  In this environment, learning is improved for every student.

Every building in the district expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLC) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLP) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART (specific, measurable, attainable, results-oriented and time-
bound) goals. There is an abundance of resources, such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac
Partners, that are used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (i.e. math nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement) were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of our youth – all of which have led to improved learning and
achievement.

Building staff provides a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning
other districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from middle school to
high school or elementary to middle school were carefully structured and focused on student needs.  Each
building was clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “benchmarking consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

229



Disney Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 20

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system and analyze factors that influence test scores to maximize teachers’ ability
to use the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed
that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant, nor is it always presented in user-friendly
formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when charts or graphs are provided,
little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats in every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the school can make
better use of the assessment data to provide increased support toward staff development and improve
instruction and student learning.

Employ the relationship with business partners to sponsor field trips that would be an extension of the
classroom.

The school has already established relationships with the community with programs that occur in the school;
this would help move some learning opportunities outside of the school setting.

These activities would provide incentives to students and parents, expand parental opportunities to celebrate
students’ accomplishments, and provide learning opportunities outside of the classroom.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.

230



Disney Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 20

toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

231

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Ezra Millard Elementary School

Carrie L. Novotny-Buss, Administrator

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

232



Ezra Millard Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Ezra Millard Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Administrator, 1 member of the
administrative team, 11 students, 5 parents, and 6 teachers. In addition, Support Staff - 4 were interviewed. The team
also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Ezra Elementary administration and staff expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student
learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals (specific, measurable, attainable, results-oriented, and time-
bound).  Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant and are used
effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

233



Ezra Millard Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools as well as Ezra Elementary School.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of the school's youth, which have all led to improved learning
and achievement.

Ezra Elementary School staff provides a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student
as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools (meaning
other districts), and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels
middle school to high school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building was clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be done as a
district-wide, collaborative effort).

234



Ezra Millard Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed
that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly
formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent, and when charts or graphs are provided,
little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats in every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the school can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

235

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Ezra Millard Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

236



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Harvey Oaks Elementary School

Roberta Deremer, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

237



Harvey Oaks Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Harvey Oaks Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 8 students, 6 parents, and 8 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Every building in the district expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLC) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLP) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART (specific, measurable, attainable, realistic, and timely) goals.
 Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant and are used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

238



Harvey Oaks Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.  The Harvey Oaks Elementary
administrative leader effectively communicates with teachers and parents and knows how to capitalize on
teacher strengths to benefit the students’ learning.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of the school's youth – which have led to improved learning and
achievement.  This kind of leadership at Harvey Oaks is at the heart of school improvement.

Building staff at Harvey Oaks provide a safe, warm and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as
an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools (meaning
other districts), and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels,
middle school to high school and elementary to middle school, are carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building was clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “benchmarking consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed

239



Harvey Oaks Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly
formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when charts or graphs are displayed,
little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats within every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

240

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Harvey Oaks Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

241



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Hitchcock Elementary School

Mandy Johnson, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

242



Hitchcock Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Hitchcock Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 2 members of the
administrative team, 7 students, 7 parents, and 5 teachers. In addition, Support Staff - 2 were interviewed. The team
also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Hitchcock Elementary expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans
(PLPs) by students help to establish target goals/SMART goals (specific, measurable, attainable, results-
oriented, and time-bound).  Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are
abundant and are used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in all

243



Hitchcock Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

Millard Public Schools, including Hitchcock Elementary School.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of the school's youth, which have all led to improved learning
and achievement.

Hitchcock Elementary School staff provides a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each
student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning
other districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels
middle school to high school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building was clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be done as a
district-wide, collaborative effort).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed

244



Hitchcock Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly
formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent, and when charts or graphs are provided,
little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats in every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

245

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Hitchcock Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

246



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Holling Heights Elementary School

Terry Houlton, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

247



Holling Heights Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 18

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Holling Heights Elementary School in
Omaha, Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 6 students, 7 parents, and 11 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Holling Heights Elementary has clearly defined expectations for student learning that are aligned with the
school’s vision and are fully supported by school personnel and stakeholders. Data are used to drive decision-
making for curriculum direction, student support, and professional development for the staff.

The administration provides data charts and analysis documents for use in planning. This enables staff to dissect
the data and become confident with its implications.

Because of the data analysis process, the school has a clear direction to formulate a plan to improve instruction.

The staff expresses and demonstrates a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best

248



Holling Heights Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 18

practice. The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals. Abundant resources, such as Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners, are used effectively.

A focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Staff members provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other
districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans from middle school to high
school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focus on student needs. Each building is
clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

249



Holling Heights Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 18

Generate longitudinal data to review continued growth. As data are collected, organized, and analyzed, teachers
will expand upon their interpretation skills and the identification of instructional strategies that are most
appropriate for increased student learning.

The administrator provides data for the teachers to analyze. His goal is for teachers to develop the skills
necessary to interpret data results accurately, with specific ideas for implementing strategies that support the
deficiencies highlighted in the data.

When teachers are able to interpret data accurately, ownership into the process of improving education for all
learners is provided.

Revise (as a district-wide, collaborative effort) the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use
the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer

250

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Holling Heights Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 18

practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

251

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Morton Elementary School

Julie K. Warnemunde, Administrator

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

252



Morton Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Morton Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Administrator, 1 member of the
administrative team, 9 students, 6 parents, and 10 teachers. In addition, Support Staff - 1 were interviewed. The team
also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

At Morton Elementary, a highly developed sense of community and collaboration among all stakeholders is
evident.

As evidenced by statements from stakeholder interviews and review team observations, the Parent Teacher
Organization is a partner not only in fund raising efforts, but also in the school improvement planning process
at Morton Elementary.  The sense of community articulated by the administration, teachers, and parents was
evident in student behaviors--notably Maverick Moments.

When there is a safe environment, student achievement can be maximized.  This strong sense of community at
Morton Elementary creates a safe environment that is supportive of increased student performance.

Every building in the district expresses and demonstrates a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

253



Morton Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLC) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLP) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals (specific, measurable, attainable, results-oriented and time-
bound).  Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant and are used
effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of the school's youth – which have all led to improved learning
and achievement.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Communicate to parents the rationale for district decisions that affect Morton Elementary School's community.

Interviews with parent representatives indicated a lack of understanding of how Morton interacts with the
overall district system.  An example was the sense of confusion related to how Morton Elementary serves as a

254



Morton Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

feeder school for three different middle schools.

Morton Elementary's greatest strength is a sense of community among its stakeholders.  Misunderstandings can
serve to break down that sense of community.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be done as a
district-wide, collaborative effort).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed
that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly
formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when charts or graphs are provided,
little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats within every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation

255

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Morton Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

256

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Neihardt Elementary School

Colleen Beckwith, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

257



Neihardt Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Neihardt Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 7 students, 6 parents, and 8 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Staff members at Neihardt provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as
an individual.

258



Neihardt Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools (meaning
other districts), and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels
middle school to high school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building is clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of our youth, which have all led to improved learning and
achievement.

Every building in the district expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLP) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART (specific, measurable, attainable, results-oriented, and time-
bound) goals.  Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant and are
used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

Neihardt Elementary School provides many opportunities to encourage leadership from within the staff.

Many teachers were volunteering to be a part of the leadership.  Because of this unique circumstance, teachers
were put on a rotation for participation on the leadership team.

The school has developed leaders who are advocates for the district’s vision and continuous school
improvement efforts.  As a result, there is a strong sense of community within the building.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact

259



Neihardt Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be a collaborative,
district-wide project).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed
that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly
formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when chart or graphs are provided, little
analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats within every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Develop strategies for recruiting parents in the decision-making and implementation processes at Neihardt
Elementary School.

Administrators, teachers, and parents all agreed that more involvement by parents is needed.

Parental involvement would provide additional resources and support for implementing initiatives at both the
district and building level.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer

260

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Neihardt Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

261

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Norris Elementary School

Peggy Brendel, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

262



Norris Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Norris Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 10 students, 4 parents, and 8 teachers. In addition, Support Staff - 2 and Community Members - 4
were interviewed. The team also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the
school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED
standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district-level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “benchmarking consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Building staff at Norris Elementary provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each

263



Norris Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning
other districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels
middle school to high school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building is clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of the school's youth, which have all led to improved learning
and achievement.

Every building in the district expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLC) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLP) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals.  Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and
PayBac Partners are abundant and are used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

Norris Elementary School’s diversity in programming permeates all levels of the organization.

The Montessori program, Title I pre-school, and regular classrooms are able to co-exist successfully to address a
wide variety of student needs and interests.

This diversity of programming makes Norris Elementary a school of choice for many parents.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making

264



Norris Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be a collaborative,
district-wide activity).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and from teacher and principal interviews, concern was
expressed that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-
friendly formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when chart or graphs are
provided, little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats in every building was
expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Increase opportunities for parent involvement in the school improvement process.

The team found through the interview process with parents that relevant data about the building’s school
improvement process is not reaching all parents.

Greater involvement of parents in the school improvement process will enhance the already well-established
sense of community.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer

265

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Norris Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

266

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Reeder Elementary

Suzanne Hinman, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

267



Reeder Elementary

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Reeder Elementary in Gretna, Nebraska on
09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 8 students, 8 parents, and 8 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Reeder Elementary School staff expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs)
by students help to establish target goals/SMART goals (specific, measurable, attainable, results-oriented, and
time-bound).  Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant and are
used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in each of

268



Reeder Elementary

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

the Millard Public Schools, including Reeder Elementary School.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of the school's youth, which have all led to improved learning
and achievement.

Reeder Elementary School staff provided a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognized each
student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning
other districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels
middle school to high school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building was clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this activity would be a
district-wide, collaborative effort).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed

269



Reeder Elementary

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly
formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent, and when charts or graphs are provided,
little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats in every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

270

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Reeder Elementary

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

271



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Norman Rockwell Elementary School

Jerri Wesley, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

272



Norman Rockwell Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 20

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Norman Rockwell Elementary School in
Omaha, Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 8 students, 3 parents, and 8 teachers. In addition, Support Staff -3 were interviewed. The team
also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Norman Rockwell Elementary School is routinely analyzing student achievement data and has placed a high
emphasis on early intervention.

Rockwell has a number of programs that address early intervention, including the Title I kindergarten program,
re-teaching programs for reading, writing, and math, and a method for identifying barely proficient students in
hopes of moving them to beyond proficient.

To provide students with a world-class education, as the Millard vision aspires to achieve, students must be
proficient in basic core academic skills before leaving the elementary level at Rockwell.

Every building in the district expresses and demonstrates a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

273



Norman Rockwell Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 20

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLC) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLP) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART (specific, measurable, attainable, results-oriented and time-
bound) goals.  Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant and are
used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of the school's youth – which have all led to improved learning
and achievement.

Staff members at Rockwell Elementary provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each
student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools (meaning
other districts), and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels
middle school to high school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building was clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations

274



Norman Rockwell Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 20

In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be done as a
district-wide, collaborative effort).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and from teacher and principal interviews, concern was
expressed that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-
friendly formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when charts/graphs are
provided, little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats within every building was
expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

275

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Norman Rockwell Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 20

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

276

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Rohwer Elementary School

Brad Sullivan, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

277



Rohwer Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 20

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Rohwer Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 9 students, 14 parents, and 14 teachers. In addition, Support Staff - 1 were interviewed. The team
also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Rohwer Elementary staff provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an
individual.

278



Rohwer Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 20

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools (meaning
other districts), and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels
middle school to high school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building is clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools and at Rohwer Elementary.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of our youth, which have all led to improved learning and
achievement.

Rohwer Elementary staff expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals (specific, measurable, attainable, results-oriented, and time-
bound).   Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant and are used
effectively.  There is evidence of strong parent involvement and participation.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Determine the level of implementation at which each Professional Learning Community (PLC) team at Rohwer
Elementary is operating, so best practices for PLCs can become more consistent throughout the building.

As stated by teachers and administration, PLCs currently function at different levels of proficiency as teams

279



Rohwer Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 20

work through the PLC process: common planning, common assessments, interpretation of the data, and
developing interventions.  Examples of highly effective PLCs, using quality practice and use of data to design
instruction and implementation, exist in the school.

As Rohwer looks to move from being a good school to a great school, PLCs provide the medium for working
with assessments to develop highly effective practices, to respond to student needs, and to develop and
implement school goals.  Collaboration within PLCs to improve consistent practice will continue to push
Rohwer to the next level.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be done as a
district-wide, collaborative effort).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed
that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly
formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when charts or graphs are provided,
little analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats in every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with

280

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Rohwer Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 20

continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

281

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Sandoz Elementary School

Susan Anglemyer, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

282



Sandoz Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Sandoz Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 7 students, 4 parents, and 6 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Sandoz Elementary School is characterized by a highly involved and caring staff that appreciates the diverse
student body and provides timely feedback to parents and students.

283



Sandoz Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

The mission of the school is well articulated and understood by all stakeholders. The staff expressed concern
regarding changing demographics and meeting basic needs of students. The school works with outside agencies
to support the basic needs of students and families. The school is an attractive, clean physical plant enhanced by
multiple pieces of student artwork throughout. The building principal, while new, is enthusiastic and willing to
embrace change. Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools
[meaning other districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior. This building staff clearly understands the concept of the “total
student” that includes addressing a child’s academic, social, emotional, and physical growth.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools and at Sandoz Elementary School.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Every building in the district expresses and demonstrates a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best
practice. The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals. Abundant resources, such as Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners, are used effectively.

A focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Explore methods to extend outreach to all parents and stakeholders, especially the non-English speaking
parents and families.

A language line has been implemented to communicate with non-English speaking parents.

284



Sandoz Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

The changing demographic of the neighborhood and student population will challenge this staff. The staff
indicates a willingness to embrace this diversity and sees it as a building strength.

Revise (as a district-wide collaborative effort) the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use
the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning..

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for

285

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Sandoz Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

286

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Wheeler Elementary School

Andrew DeFreece, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

287



Wheeler Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 20

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Wheeler Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 2 members of the
administrative team, 8 students, 5 parents, and 7 teachers. In addition, Support Staff - 1 were interviewed. The team
also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Wheeler Elementary School expressed and demonstrated a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization.  Interventions are based on best
practice.  The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLC) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLP) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART (specific, measurable, attainable, results-oriented and time-
bound) goals.  Resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant and are
used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources has contributed to the improvement and support of student
learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the

288



Wheeler Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 20

Millard Public Schools, as well as in Wheeler Elementary School.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (Strategic Planning, School Improvement), were cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools.  “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated.  This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships have been built that resulted in support of bond
issues, volunteerism, and better understanding of our youth, which have all led to improved learning and
achievement.

Wheeler Elementary staff provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an
individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflected the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools (meaning
other districts), and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels
middle school to high school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student
needs.  Each building is clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern has contributed to an overall sense of belonging that has
resulted in excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place.  Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district.  Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship.  The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium” has
provided opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be a district-wide,
collaborative effort).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher/principal interviews, concern was expressed

289



Wheeler Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 20

that an abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly
formats.  The turn-around time for testing results is not consistent and when chart or graphs are provided, little
analysis is provided.  The need for consistent use of data retreats in every building was expressed.

By improving the methods in which student performance data is shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

290

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Wheeler Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 20

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

291



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Willowdale Elementary School

Susan Kelley, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

292



Willowdale Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 18

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Willowdale Elementary School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 7 students, 6 parents, and 4 teachers. In addition, Community Members - 1 were interviewed. The
team also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the
team examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district-level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

The staff provides a safe learning environment that is focused on student success, both academically and
socially.

293



Willowdale Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 18

Interviews reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other districts],
and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.”  Transition plans from building levels (middle school to
high school and elementary to middle school) are carefully structured and focus on the needs of students.  The
school is clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.  The team observed various teaching styles and
instructional methods that clearly enhance the achievement of students.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.  Students come to school ready and willing to learn.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Every building in the district, including Willowdale Elementary, expresses and demonstrates a clear and
powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best
practice. The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals. Abundant resources, such as Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners, are used effectively.

A focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise (as a district-wide collaborative effort) the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use
the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The

294



Willowdale Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 18

turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

295

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Willowdale Elementary School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 18

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

296



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Harry Andersen Middle School

Jeff S. Alfrey, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

297



Harry Andersen Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Harry Andersen Middle School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 2 members of the
administrative team, 8 students, 6 parents, and 5 teachers. In addition, 3 Support Staff were interviewed. The team also
reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Each building in the district expresses and demonstrates a clear and powerful focus on student learning. Harry
Andersen Middle School provides multiple programs to support students both academically and socially.

A variety of programs, including re-teaching programs, the Adventure program, high ability learning (HAL), and
the Ninth Hour (which allows students to do make-up work) is in place. Curriculum is clearly articulated
throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best practice. The use of Professional
Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by students help to establish target
goals/SMART goals. Resources such as the Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant
and are used effectively.

A  focus on energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.
Programs that allow students extra time and support are essential in ensuring that all students are successful in

298



Harry Andersen Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

meeting the learning expectations of the school district.

Andersen Middle School recognizes that establishing relationships among and between adults and students at
the middle level is critical to long-term success. The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense
of community among the stakeholders.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Staff members provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other
districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans from middle school to high
school or elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student needs. Each building is
clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public Schools has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data.

299



Harry Andersen Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

300

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Harry Andersen Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

301



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Beadle Middle School

John Southworth, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

302



Beadle Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Beadle Middle School in Omaha, Nebraska
on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 2 members of the
administrative team, 8 students, 5 parents, and 9 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

The 40 Developmental Assets are a high priority across the district and within Beadle Middle School where
student leadership is at the forefront.

Students provide leadership for the implementation of the 40 Developmental Assets. Student leadership makes
it successful.

With the development of student leaders, there is a deep sense of pride and ownership in the district and
building.

Beadle Middle School and all schools in the district express and demonstrate a clear and powerful focus on
student learning.

303



Beadle Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best
practice. The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals. Abundant resources, such as Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners, are used effectively.

A focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Staff provides a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other
districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans from middle school to high
school and elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student needs. Each building is
clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to

304



Beadle Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Develop a plan for AimsWeb data analysis throughout the building to provide a seamless approach to assist all
students in being successful.

AimsWeb is currently used with seventh and eighth grade, and it is showing success. Teachers and students
both commented on the success of the process.

Further implementation and refinement of this process will support increased student achievement for all
learners. It will aid in locating specific areas needing remediation and extensions.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The

305

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Beadle Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

306

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Central Middle School

Beth Fink, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

307



Central Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 18

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Central Middle School in Omaha, Nebraska
on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 3 members of the
administrative team, 6 students, 6 parents, and 7 teachers. In addition, 6 Community Members were interviewed. The
team also reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the
team examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Central Middle School has a strong administrative team that listens to its student, faculty, and other stakeholders
for ideas and subsequent instructional strategies that will positively affect student learning. The result has been
the implementation of after-school programs that aid students who are academically at risk.

Each group, whether it is the homework club or Time Traveling, shows hard data that demonstrate student
academic and social growth.

The impact, in addition to improved student learning, is that the students experience a greater feeling of
connectedness to the school experience.

Central Middle School, as well as every building in the district, expresses and demonstrates a clear and powerful
focus on student learning.

308



Central Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 18

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best
practice. The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals.  Abundant resources, such as Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners, are used effectively.

A focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders at Central
Middle School.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g.,  Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Staff provides a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other
districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans from middle school to high
school or elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student needs. Each building is
clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership that is clearly
demonstrated at Central Middle School.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact

309



Central Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 18

on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Explore alternative funding sources for the after school programs so that whenever the “soft” money or grants
are no longer available the existing programs can be sustained.

The after school programs, such as Time Traveling, homework club, and After School Assistive Program
(ASAP), help at risk students improve their academic performance.

If the funding is reduced or cannot be accessed after the life of a grant, the academic growth and enrichment of
students may be affected negatively.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer

310

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Central Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 18

practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

311

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Kiewit Middle School

Lori Jasa, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

312



Kiewit Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Kiewit Middle School in Omaha, Nebraska
on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 7 students, 6 parents, and 4 teachers. In addition, 4 Support Staff were interviewed. The team also
reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Kiewit Middle School maintains a clear focus on successful student performance that is evident at all levels of
the organization.

This is evident through the exceptional programs, active student involvement in education, and the number of
communication tools available.  Interviews reveal a strong emphasis on student success, academically and in life
skills, that all stakeholders support.

This focus has led to success in student performance.

A clear and powerful focus on student learning is expressed and demonstrated at the school.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best

313



Kiewit Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

practice. The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans  (PLPs)
by students helps to establish target goals/SMART goals.  Resources such as the Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners are abundant and used effectively.

A focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Staff provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other
districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans from middle school to high
school or elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student needs. The building was
clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

This environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

314



Kiewit Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school

315

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Kiewit Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

316



Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
North Middle School

Joan WIlson, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

317



North Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 18

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the North Middle School in Omaha, Nebraska
on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 2 members of the
administrative team, 6 students, 6 parents, and 4 teachers. In addition, 1 Support Staff were interviewed. The team also
reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

North Middle School is a high performing school when evaluated using the seven AdvancED standards.

A commitment to continuous improvement, the allocation of resources, and a focus on students and their
achievement is evident. Information from interviews consistently confirmed this.

Multiple processes and structures are in place to help and support all students. A highly dedicated staff,
leadership, and the support of all stakeholders ensure the processes and structures have a positive impact on
students.

North Middle School expresses and demonstrates a clear and powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best

318



North Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 18

practice. The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals. Abundant resources, such as Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners, are used effectively.

A focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders at North
Middle School.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

Staff members provide a safe, warm, and welcoming environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other
districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans from middle school to high
school or elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focus on student needs. Each building is
clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

319



North Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 18

Devise plans to deepen the connections between the site planning/building improvement process and the work
that takes place in each classroom.

Many wonderful activities at North Middle School have an extremely positive impact on kids and their learning.
However, community and stakeholders may not have an overall understanding of how all of the activities are
connected.

Communication and planning that ensures a concentrated and seamless connection between all facets of school
improvement and the classroom will strengthen the educational process.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The

320

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


North Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 18

AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

321

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Russell Middle School

Mitch Mollring, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

322



Russell Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 20

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Russell Middle School in Omaha, Nebraska
on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 3 members of the
administrative team, 8 students, 7 parents, and 8 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Charles Russell Middle School maintains a clear and powerful focus on student performance.

Administrators, teachers, parents, and students identify a focus on student performance at the school. Evidence
to support the claim was also obtained through classroom observations. Stakeholders are well aware of the
school’s student performance objectives and current performance levels. Curriculum is clearly articulated
throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best practice. The use of Professional
Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by students help to establish target
goals/SMART goals. Abundant resources such as Millard Educational Foundation and PayBac Partners are
used effectively.

A focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning and
to the school’s high scores on student performance measures (TerraNova and Essential Learning Outcome

323



Russell Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 20

[ELO] tests).

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools and Russell Middle School.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

The school climate is highly supportive of students and staff and provides a safe, warm, and welcoming
environment that recognizes each student as an individual.

Results of student interviews indicate that teachers know each student and provide support in academics and
co-curricular activities. Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different
schools [meaning other districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans from
middle school to high school or elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focused on student
needs. Each building is clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior. A school climate that is supportive of students removes barriers to
learning.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmark Consortium” provides
opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning

 

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to

324



Russell Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 20

submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-

325

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Russell Middle School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 20

ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

326

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Millard North High School

Brian Begley, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

327



Millard North High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Millard North High School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 2 members of the
administrative team, 5 students, 6 parents, and 6 teachers. In addition, 2 Support Staff were interviewed. The team also
reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Millard North High School (as well as every building in the district) expresses and demonstrates a clear and
powerful focus on student learning.

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best
practice. The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by
students helps to establish target goals/SMART goals.  Abundant resources such as Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners are used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

328



Millard North High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built, and all have led to improved learning and
achievement.

A safe, warm, and welcoming environment recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other
districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans (from middle school to high
school or elementary to middle school) are carefully structured and focus on student needs. The building is
clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

An educational program dedicated to improving student performance at all levels and meeting the needs of all
students is successfully implemented.

As evidenced by small class sizes, high achievement scores on nationally normed assessments such ACT, SAT,
Advanced Placement (AP), and International Baccalaureate and on state and local benchmarks, the entire school
community of staff, students, and parents is focused on academics. Millard North offers a wide variety of extra-
curricular activities and athletics, courses that challenge students at all achievement levels in many content areas,
and support systems for those who struggle. Students and parents express pride in their school and
understand what is expected of them.

Educational programs that establish a culture of achievement help all students to understand their responsibility
for learning and to be successful in the future.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium”
provides opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures provide stability within the organization while allowing building and district leaders to gain the
benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations

329



Millard North High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data.

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts and graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building. 

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the school can make
better use of assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

330

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Millard North High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

331

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Millard South High School

Curtis R. Case, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

332



Millard South High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 19

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Millard South High School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 8 students, 8 parents, and 9 teachers. In addition, 1 Support Staff were interviewed. The team also
reviewed documents, student performance data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team
examined the school's systems and processes in relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Millard South High School focuses on the growth of all students by providing challenging experiences in the
classroom and activities to meet the needs of a diverse student body.

Student success is celebrated in many ways. Walls of fame, display cases, and a posting of a variety of student
success stories are evident throughout the building.

By celebrating success from a variety of different perspectives, stakeholders appreciate the importance of
growing the whole person and recognize that success takes many forms.

Millard South High School, as well as every building in the district, expresses and demonstrates a clear and
powerful focus on student learning.

333



Millard South High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 19

Curriculum is clearly articulated throughout all levels of the organization. Interventions are based on best
practice. The use of Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by staff and Personal Learning Plans (PLPs) by
students help to establish target goals/SMART goals. Abundant resources, such as Millard Educational
Foundation and PayBac Partners, are used effectively.

This focus of energy, research, and resources contributes to the improvement and support of student learning.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (e.g., Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (e.g., strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in
helping parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars
being used wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents
rated the schools as being “A” or “B” quality. Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have
children in the schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

A safe, warm, and welcoming environment recognizes each student as an individual.

Interviews repeatedly reflect the statement of one student, “I have been in six different schools [meaning other
districts], and I’ve never been to a school that cares so much.” Transition plans from middle school to high
school or elementary to middle school are carefully structured and focus on student needs. The building is
clearly designed with the needs of students in mind.

An environment of sincere caring and concern contributes to an overall sense of belonging that results in
excellent student performance and behavior.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the “Benchmarking Consortium”
provides opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to

334



Millard South High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 19

submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Evaluate technology needs and develop a plan to enable all students to have greater access to needed
technology (computers, SMART Boards).

Interviews with students and teachers indicate a lack of appropriate access to technology. Specifically, students
indicate a desire to have one-to-one computing capacity and greater use of SMART Boards.

Today’s students come to school more technologically advanced, and their needs must be met. Society expects
students to be able to perform in an information-based economy, and a world-class school must meet this
expectation.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be a district-wide
collaborative effort).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the school can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer

335

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork


Millard South High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 19

practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the
website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

336

http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Report of the
Quality Assurance Review Team

for
Millard West High School

Richard Kolowski, Principal

 

 

Review Dates: 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008

 

AdvancED is the unified organization of the North Central Association Commission on
Accreditation and School Improvement (NCA CASI), Southern Association of Colleges and

Schools Council on Accreditation and School Improvement (SACS CASI), and
National Study of School Evaluation (NSSE).

 

337



Millard West High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 5 of 18

Summary of Findings

A Quality Assurance Review Team representing the North Central Association Commission on Accreditation and
School Improvement (NCA CASI), a division of AdvancED, visited the Millard West High School in Omaha,
Nebraska on 09/23/2008 - 09/25/2008.

During the visit, members of the Quality Assurance Review Team interviewed the Principal, 1 member of the
administrative team, 6 students, 5 parents, and 10 teachers. The team also reviewed documents, student performance
data, and other artifacts provided by the school. Specifically, the team examined the school's systems and processes in
relation to the seven AdvancED standards:

Vision and Purpose
Governance and Leadership
Teaching and Learning
Documenting and Using Results
Resource and Support Systems
Stakeholder Communications and Relationships
Commitment to Continuous Improvement

The AdvancED standards focus on systems within a school and systematic methods of attaining high student
performance and organizational effectiveness. The power of the standards lies in the connections and linkages
between and among the standards. The Quality Assurance Review Team used the AdvancED standards to guide its
review of the school, looking not only for adherence to individual standards, but also for how the school functions as
a whole and embodies the practices and characteristics of a quality school.

Through its examination of the school's adherence to the standards, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the
following commendations and recommendations.

Commendations
The Quality Assurance Review Team commends the school for the following strengths and accomplishments. While
additional strengths are noted in the detailed review of each standard that appears later in this report, the
commendations listed below are the strengths that the team believes are most deserving of being highlighted.

Millard West High School is clearly focused on its mission of guaranteeing that all learners achieve a world-class
education.

A world-class education is achieved by pushing students to higher achievement through honors and Advanced
Placement (AP) options but also through the development of a comprehensive Pyramid of Interventions to
help all students achieve. AP offerings, students participating in AP, and successful scores on AP tests have
increased. The concept of a Pyramid of Intervention has been embraced through opportunities for re-
teaching/re-learning (learning center, guided study hall), courses designed to remediate (Essential Learning
Outcomes [ELO] focused courses), and systems to track student performance.

Millard West High School has positioned itself as a leading academic institution not only in the district but also
in the state and the nation. The commitment to guaranteeing a world-class education helps teachers, parents,

338



Millard West High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 6 of 18

and students to focus on continued improvement for all students.

The use of multiple communication methods has built a sense of community among the stakeholders in the
Millard Public Schools.

Open houses, advisement conferences, Infinite Campus (online grade book software program), building
websites and newsletters, “Friday Folders” (individual student notebooks that travel from home to school),
extensive use of phone calls and email, community outreach (Math Nights), and invitations to serve on
committees (strategic planning, school improvement) are cited repeatedly as being critically important in helping
parents and community know what is happening in the schools. “We see the value of our tax dollars being used
wisely,” one patron stated. This sentiment is reflected in a parent survey where 90% of the parents rated the
schools as being “A” or “B” quality.  Sixty-five percent of the citizens in the district do not have children in the
schools, yet bond issues have been continually supported.

Through effective methods of communication, relationships that result in support of bond issues, volunteerism,
and better understanding of young people have been built and have led to improved learning and achievement.

The Millard Public School District has developed strong building and district level leadership.

A deliberate plan to “grow” strong leaders is in place. Sixty percent of the district principals are nurtured and
hired from within the district, while 40% are hired from outside of the district. Any individual who is new to a
position is provided support through mentorship. The development of the "Benchmarking Consortium"
provides opportunities for Millard leaders to observe and learn from school leaders in other states.

These structures have provided stability within the organization, while allowing building and district leaders to
gain the benefit of new ideas and perspectives that support the total culture of learning.

Recommendations
In addition to the commendations, the Quality Assurance Review Team identified the following recommendations for
improvement. The team focused its recommendations on those areas that, if addressed, will have the greatest impact
on improving student performance and overall school effectiveness. The school will be held accountable for making
progress on each of the recommendations noted in this section. Following this review, the school will be asked to
submit a progress report on these recommendations.

Align the Millard West High School site plan with the vision and use of professional learning community (PLC)
teams.

The current building site plan does not provide specific goals, actions, or timelines to support the vision or the
existing practice of using PLCs. Through the implementation of PLCs, Millard West has developed systems
throughout the school that assist all students to achieve and improve; still, the PLCs function at different levels
of proficiency and focus.

If the site plan deliberately reflects the vision of the district, it can enhance collaboration and sharing among
PLCs. This can strengthen all PLCs so they can better support and focus the work of instruction and
intervention to improve learning for all students.

Revise the student assessment system to maximize teachers’ ability to use the data (this would be a district-wide

339



Millard West High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 7 of 18

collaborative effort).

Through a review of the district’s assessment system and teacher and principal interviews, it was noted that an
abundance of data is available, but some is not relevant nor is it always presented in user-friendly formats. The
turn-around time for testing results is not consistent; and when charts or graphs are generated, little analysis is
provided. There is a need for consistent use of data retreats in every building.

By improving the methods by which student performance data are shared with teachers, the schools can make
better use of the assessment data to improve instruction and student learning.

Review of AdvancED Standards for Quality Schools: The team reviewed the school's adherence to each of the
AdvancED standards. The findings from this review are provided in the next section of this report.

Next Steps
The school should:

Review and discuss the findings from this report with all stakeholders.1.
Ensure that plans are in place to embed and sustain the strengths noted in the commendations section to2.
maximize their impact on the school.
Develop action plans to address the recommendations made by the team. Include methods for monitoring3.
progress toward the recommendations.
Use the report to guide and strengthen the school's efforts to improve student performance and school4.
effectiveness.
Following the Quality Assurance Review, submit the Accreditation Progress Report detailing progress made5.
toward addressing the team's recommendations. The report will be reviewed at the state and national level to
ensure that significant progress is being made toward the recommendations. Lack of progress can result in a
change in accreditation status.
Continue to meet the AdvancED accreditation standards, submit required reports, engage in continuous6.
improvement, and document results.

Resources
AdvancED offers a range of resources to support your school as it acts on the findings in this report. The AdvancED
Resource Network, available at www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork, provides an online network of peer-to-peer
practices, best practices, and resources and tools designed to help schools with their improvement efforts. Available
any where, any time, the network can be queried for information on a variety of school improvement subjects. The
AdvancED Research and Development division provides research, handbooks, and tools to assist schools with
continuous improvement. In addition, your state office provides hands-on professional development and ongoing
technical assistance. Contact your state office for more information on the range of resources available to you.

Celebrating Accreditation
Following the visit, the Quality Assurance Review Team submits an accreditation recommendation to AdvancED for
state review and for action at the national level by the AdvancED Accreditation Commission, which confers
accreditation and communicates it to the school. Upon receiving its accreditation, the school should celebrate its
achievement with the school community. The NCA CASI accreditation seals are available at www.advanc-
ed.org/communicationskit for accredited schools and districts to post on their website and to use in school
communications. Flags, door decals, diploma seals, and lapel pins are also available and can be ordered from the

340

http://www.advanc-ed.org/resourcenetwork
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit
http://www.advanc-ed.org/communicationskit


Millard West High School

Quality Assurance Review Report Page 8 of 18

website to help you share your accomplishment with your community.

Summary
The accreditation process engages the school in an ongoing journey of continuous improvement. The next steps in
this journey are to build on the strengths and address the recommendations noted in this report. Doing so will enable
the school to advance in its quest for excellence and deepen the fulfillment of its mission for all students.

341



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Risk Management Report 
 
MEETING DATE: December 15, 2008 
 
DEPARTMENT: General Administration 
 
TITLE & BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION: Risk Management Report – A report on the insurance coverage maintained by the 

District. 
 
ACTION DESIRED: Approval              Discussion             Information Only      x                                .       
 
BACKGROUND: Don Kamins and Bill Johnson of the Harry A. Koch Company are the District’s 

insurance consultants.  They will be present to answer any questions board 
members may have. 

 
  
 
OPTIONS AND 
ALTERNATIVES: n/a 
 
RECOMMENDATION: n/a 
 
STRATEGIC PLAN 
REFERENCE: n/a 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF 
ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 
 
TIMELINE: n/a 
 
RESPONSIBLE PERSON: HAKCO and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 
 
SUPERINTENDENT’S 
APPROVAL:  

342



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

An  
Insurance  
Summary  

For 
 
 

School Dist #17 of 
Douglas County 

 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

November 26, 2008 

 
 
 
 
 
  

   
      

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
               Contacts: 
 

 

 

Agent 
Donald J. Kamins, AAI, RHU 

Vice President 
402-861-7035 

don.kamins@hakco.com 
 

William R. Johnson 
Sr. Vice President 

402-861-7031 
bill.johnson@hakco.com 

 
Customer Service Representative 

Sherry Allen, ARM, AAI, CPSR, CPIW 
Sr. Commercial Customer Service Rep 

402-861-7022 
sherry.allen@hakco.com 

“Putting Clients First 
Since 1916” 

343



The Harry A. Koch Co. 

2 

 
Table of Contents 
 

Property .............................................................................................................................................3 

Blanket Installation Floater ...............................................................................................................4 

Blanket Builders Risk........................................................................................................................4 

Equipment Floater .............................................................................................................................5 

General Liability ...............................................................................................................................5 

Business Automobile.........................................................................................................................6 

Workers' Compensation ....................................................................................................................7 

Umbrella............................................................................................................................................7 

Nurses Professional Liability ............................................................................................................8 

Security & Privacy Liability..............................................................................................................8 

Fiduciary Liability Coverage.............................................................................................................9 

Crime Coverages ...............................................................................................................................9 

Computer Coverage.........................................................................................................................10 

Boiler & Machinery Coverages.......................................................................................................10 

School Leaders E&O.......................................................................................................................11 

Premium Summary..........................................................................................................................12 

344



The Harry A. Koch Co. 

We are pleased to assist you with your own final determination of the values you decide to insure. 3

 
Property Policy 
 
Insurance Company: Travelers Property Casualty Co  
Policy Number: Y630115R6046TIL08  
Policy Term: 6/1/2008  to 6/1/2009  
 

Blanket Schedule 
Blanket 

# 
Subject of Insurance Limit Co-Ins % Ded Valuation Cause of 

Loss 
Agreed 
Amount 

1 Building $417,280,295  $25,000 R SPC Y 
2 Personal Property $52,605,805  $25,000 R SPC Y 
3 Property of Others $200,000  $25,000 R SPC Y 
 
 
Additional Coverages and/or Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
Description: Limit: Deductible: 
Fungus, Wet Rot, Dry Rot, Bacteria & Other Causes of Loss Changes-Direct 
Damage-Increased Limit 

$250,000 $25,000 

Electronic Vandalism Limitation Endorsement $10,000 $25,000 
Fine Arts included in Deluxe Property $100,000 $25,000 
Ordinance or Law Coverage -Covers undamaged portion of ea Bldg & $1,000,000 
limit for Coverages B &C 

  

Personal Effects $50,000 $25,000 
Covered Property-All Buildings, Structures & Equip. related to school activities on 
School Premises 

  

Covered Property-Lighting Equipment & Poles   
Personal Property at any one Exhibition $150,000 $25,000 
Personal Property at any other not Owned, leased or regularly operated premises $150,000 $25,000 
Property in Transit-Common or Contract Carrier, Railroad, Air Carrier, Insured's 
vehicles 

$200,000 $25,000 

Earthquake - Blanket $25,000,000 $100,000 
Flood - Blanket $25,000,000 $100,000 
Ordinary Payroll Included in Business Income   
Property in Open (parking lot signs; normal architectural lighting not incl sports 
lighting) 

  

Property in Open (All signs, all fences, free standing retaining walls & landscape 
enhancements) 

  

Property in Open (Playground equipment, all nonscheduled outdoor sports equip or 
structures) 

  

Property in Open (All irrigation pumps, equipment & support structures, 
rubberized tracks) 

  

Valuable Papers - On Premises $500,000 $25,000 
Valuable Papers In Transit or at Undescribed Location $10,000 $25,000 
Vacancy/Unoccupied Permit for 13731-37 Industrial Rd   
 
 
Named Insureds: 
 
School District #17 of Douglas County AKA Millard Public School District   
Millard Education Foundation, Inc. DBA Millard Public Schools Foundation   
 

345



The Harry A. Koch Co. 

Higher limits may be available.  Call our office for a quotation. 4

 
Blanket Installation Floater 
 
Insurance Company: Hartford Fire Insurance Co  
Policy Number: 91MSII9928  
Policy Term: 3/1/2008  to 3/1/2009  
 
 
Limits: Coverage Description: 

$3,000,000  Single Location 
$3,000,000  Per Disaster 

$500,000  Temporary Location 
$500,000  Transit  

$3,000,000 Earthquake  
$3,000,000 Flood 

 
$2,500 Deductible - Special 

$50,000 Deductible – Earthquake 
$50,000 Deductible – Flood 

 
 
 
 
 
Blanket Builders Risk Policy 
 
Insurance Company: Hartford Fire Insurance Co  
Policy Number: 91MSZQ5703  
Policy Term: 9/1/2008  to 9/1/2009  
 
Limits: Coverage Description: 

$7,850,000  Single Location 
$42,000,000  Per Disaster 

$500,000  Temporary Location 
$500,000  Transit  

$5,000,000 Earthquake  
$5,000,000 Flood 

 
$5,000 Deductible - Special 

$50,000 Deductible - Earthquake 
$50,000 Deductible - Flood 

 
Additional Coverages and/or Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
Description: Limit: Deductible:
Additional Insured-All General Contractors & All Tiers of Subcontractors 
Equipment Breakdown Coverage Including Testing $7,850,000 $5,000
Soft Costs and Rental Income Coverage $641,000 $5,000
Multiple projects for school district 
 

346



The Harry A. Koch Co. 

Higher limits may be available.  Call our office for a quotation. 5

 
EEqquuiippmmeenntt  FFllooaatteerr  PPoolliiccyy  
 
Insurance Company: Travelers Property Casualty Co  
Policy Number: Y630115R6046TIL08  
Policy Term: 6/1/2008  to 6/1/2009  
 
 
Limits: Coverage Description: 

$362,750  Blanket Equipment – total scheduled items 
$50,000 Leased & Rented Equipment 

Deductibles:  
$1,000  Any one Occurrence 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GGeenneerraall  LLiiaabbiilliittyy  PPoolliiccyy  
 
Insurance Company: Travelers Property Casualty Co  
Policy Number: Y630115R6046TIL08  
Policy Term: 6/1/2008  to 6/1/2009  
 
 
Coverage Written On: [X] Occurrence Form 
 [   ] Claims-Made Form; Retro Date:    
  
Limits: Coverage Description: 
$2,000,000  General Aggregate 
$2,000,000  Products and Completed Operations Aggregate  
$1,000,000  Personal and Advertising Injury 
$1,000,000  Each Occurrence – Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$300,000  Fire Damage 
$10,000  Medical Expenses 
 
 
Additional Coverages and/or Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
Description: Limit #1 Limit #2 Remarks 
Sexual Abuse Coverage(Claims Made) Retro: 6/1/98 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Each 

Claim/$1,000,000 
Aggregate 

Employee Benefits Liability Coverage- Claims Made- $1,000,000 $2,000,000 Retro Date 06/01/97 
Employees - 3,200 

Corporal Punishment    
 
 

347



The Harry A. Koch Co. 

Higher limits may be available.  Call our office for a quotation. 6

 
BBuussiinneessss  AAuuttoommoobbiillee  PPoolliiccyy  
 
Insurance Company: Travelers Property Casualty Co  
Policy Number: Y810115R6046TIL08  
Policy Term: 6/1/2008  to 6/1/2009  
 
 
Limits: Symbols: Coverage Description: 
$1,000,000  1          Combined Single Limit – Bodily Injury/Property Damage 
$1,000,000  2      Uninsured Motorist  
$1,000,000  2      Underinsured Motorist 
$5,000  2      Medical Payments – Each Person 

See Vehicle Schedule 8  10      Comprehensive 
See Vehicle Schedule 8  11      Collision 

 
Hired / Borrowed Auto 

State Cost of Hire If Any Physical Damage 
Limit 

Unl Comp 
 Deductible 

Collision 
Deductible 

NE  Y $50,000  $1,000 $1,000
 
Non-Owned Auto 

State Number of employees 
NE 
 
 
Additional Coverages and/or Exclusions include, but are not limited to: 
Description: Limit #1 Ded #1
Comp. & Collision Applies to All Owned Autos Except 1997 & Older  
 

348



The Harry A. Koch Co. 

Higher limits may be available.  Call our office for a quotation. 7

 
WWoorrkkeerrss’’  CCoommppeennssaattiioonn  PPoolliiccyy  
 
Insurance Company: United Wisconsin Insurance Company  
Policy Number: 0400078926  
Policy Term: 6/1/2008  to 6/1/2009  
 
 
Limits: Coverage Description: 
$500,000  Employer’s Liability – Each Accident 
$500,000  Employer’s Liability – Disease – Policy Limit 
$500,000  Employer’s Liability – Disease – Each Employee 

 
 
Experience Modification Rating: 0.9300   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
UUmmbbrreellllaa  PPoolliiccyy  
 
Insurance Company: Travelers Property Casualty Co  
Policy Number: CUP115R6046TIL08  
Policy Term: 6/1/2008  to 6/1/2009  
 
 
Limits: Coverage Description: 
$4,000,000  Each Occurrence 
$4,000,000  Annual Aggregate 
$10,000  Retained Limit 
 
 
 
 

349



The Harry A. Koch Co. 

Higher limits may be available.  Call our office for a quotation. 8

 
NNuurrsseess  PPrrooffeessssiioonnaall  LLiiaabbiilliittyy    
 
Insurance Company: Landmark American Insurance Company  
Policy Number: LHM719087  
Policy Term: 9/13/2008  to 9/13/2009  
 
 
 
Coverage Description Limit 1 Ded 1 Limit 2 
Medical Professional Liability Coverage - Claims Made Basis - School 
Nurses 

$2,000,000 $2,500 $2,000,000 

Policy Retro Date  09-13-2004    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SSeeccuurriittyy  &&  PPrriivvaaccyy  LLiiaabbiilliittyy    
 
Insurance Company: American International Specialty Lines  
Policy Number: 0766465  
Policy Term: 2/9/2008  to 2/9/2009  
 
 
 
 
Coverage Description Limit 1 Ded 1 
Security & Privacy Liability $1,000,000 $25,000 
Retro Date 11/7/06 (Failure of Security); 2/9/07 (Privacy Peril)   
Crisis Management - Limit per event, 10% Coinsurance Applies $100,000 $25,000 
Privacy Regulatory Action Limit of Liability $250,000  
Policy Aggregate - Aggregate for all coverages combined including claims expenses $1,000,000  
 
 
 

350



The Harry A. Koch Co. 

Higher limits may be available.  Call our office for a quotation. 9

 
FFiidduucciiaarryy  LLiiaabbiilliittyy    
 
Insurance Company: Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of Ameri  
Policy Number: 104896938  
Policy Term: 6/1/2008  to 6/1/2009  
 
 
 
Coverage Description Limit 1 Ded 1 
Aggregate limit $2,000,000 $5,000 
Claims Made Policy   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CCrriimmee  CCoovveerraaggeess    
 
Insurance Company: Travelers Casualty & Surety Co of Ameri  
Policy Number: 104103595  
Policy Term: 6/1/2008  to 6/1/2009  
 
 
 
Coverage Description Limit 1 Ded 1 
Public Employee Dishonesty Coverage - Per Loss $1,000,000 $5,000 
Form B - Forgery & Alteration $500,000 $2,500 
Form C - Theft, disappearance & destruction-Inside $30,000 $500 
Form C - Theft, disappearance & destruction-Outside $30,000 $500 
Form F - Computer fraud $500,000 $2,500 
 
 

351



The Harry A. Koch Co. 

Higher limits may be available.  Call our office for a quotation. 10

 
CCoommppuutteerr  CCoovveerraaggeess    
 
Insurance Company: Travelers Property Casualty Co  
Policy Number: Y630115R6046TIL08  
Policy Term: 6/1/2008  to 6/1/2009  
 
 
Coverage Description Limit 1 Ded 1 
Blanket hardware $3,500,000 $25,000 
Blanket software $270,000 $25,000 
Blanket Extra Expense and Business Income $1,000,000  
Earthquake - Blanket  $25,000 
Flood - Blanket  $25,000 
EDP Property Any Other Location  (for temp storage for summer 2007 EDP installations) $500,000  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BBooiilleerr  &&  MMaacchhiinneerryy    
 
Insurance Company: Travelers Property Casualty Co  
Policy Number: BM21318X929ATIL08  
Policy Term: 6/1/2008  to 6/1/2009  
 
 
Coverage Description Limit 1 Ded 1 Ded 2 Remarks 
Total Limit Per Breakdown $41,000,000    
B&M Property Damage $40,000,000 $5,000   
Business Income/Extra Expense $1,000,000 $24   
Spoilage Damage $100,000 $10 $2,500 10% of Loss/$2,500 

Minimum Deductible  
Utility Interruption if at least 8 hours $1,000,000 $24  Coverage applies only 

if interruption lasts at 
least: 8 hours  

Data or media $5,000 $5,000   
Error in description $1,000,000 $5,000   
Expediting Expense $100,000 $5,000   
Newly acquired location - Number of Days of 
coverage 90 Days 

$1,000,000 $5,000   

Ordinance or law, Demolition, Increased Cost of 
Construction 

$1,000,000 $5,000   

Ammonia Contamination - Limit included in 
Property Damage Limit - Deductible included with 
Property Damage Deductible 

$100,000    

Hazardous Substance - Included in Property 
Damage Limit 

$100,000 $5,000   

Water Damage - Included in Property Damage 
Limit 

$100,000 $5,000   

 
 

352



The Harry A. Koch Co. 

Higher limits may be available.  Call our office for a quotation. 11

 
SScchhooooll  LLeeaaddeerrss  EErrrroorrss  &&  OOmmiissssiioonnss  
 
Insurance Company: Illinois National Insurance Co.  
Policy Number: 011438356  
Policy Term: 8/18/2008  to 8/18/2009  
 
 
 
 
Coverage Description Limit 1 Ded 1 Remarks 
School Leaders E&O $1,000,000 $25,000 Claims Made 

Coverage Form  
IEP Hearing Limit of Liability $100,000   
Desegregation Limit of Liability $100,000   
Breach of Contract Limit of Liability $100,000   
Breach of Fiduciary Duty Limit of Liability $25,000   
Each Employment Practices Violation Deductible  $50,000  
Each IEP Hearing Deductible  $10,000  
Employment Practices Violation Endorsement (Including Separate 
Deductible -each Employment Practices Violation) 

 $50,000  

Policy First Inception Date  08-18-2002    
Expanded Coverage First Inception Date  08-18-2008    
Expanded Coverage Retroactive Date  08-18-2008    
Coverage Territory Endorsement (OFAC)    
Corporal Punishment Endorsement    
Knowledge of Wrongful Act Exclusion Amendatory Endorsement    
 
 
Named Insureds: 
 
School District #17 of Douglas County aka Millard Public School District   
 
 
 
 

353



The Harry A. Koch Co. 
 
 
 

Higher limits may be available.  Call our office for a quotation. 12

 
PPrreemmiiuumm  SSuummmmaarryy  
 
 
 
Coverage Carrier A.M. Best 

Rating 
2007 

Expiring 
Premium 

2008 
Current 

Premium 
    
Property Travelers A+,  XV 293,125 256,023
Inland Marine Travelers A+,  XV 3,958 3,765
General Liability Travelers A+,  XV 218,567 211,958
Boiler & Machinery Travelers A+,  XV 24,672 24,672
Crime Travelers A+,  XIII 8,414 8,414
Auto Travelers A+,  XV 127,493 137,076
Umbrella Travelers A+,  XV 115,636 115,689
Workers’ Comp United Heartland A,  X 716,238 507,045
School Leaders E&O AIG/Illinois Nat’l 

Ins Co (Admitted) 
A,  XV 20,841 22,019

Nurses Professional Liability Landmark 
American Ins Co 
(Non-Admitted) 

A,  XII 17,819 17,808

Fiduciary Liability Travelers A+,  XIII 5,230 6,883
Blanket Builders Risk Hartford A+,  XV 10,212 7,490
Blanket Installation Floater Hartford A+,  XV 5,469 3,955
Network Security & Privacy AIG/American 

Internat’l Specialty 
Lines Ins Co  
(Non-Admitted) 

A,  XV 19,062 18,122

    
Totals   1,586,736 1,340,919
 
 
 
 

354


	Board Packet December 15, 2008
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes November 17, 2008
	Financials
	E.4. Committee of the Whole Minutes December 1, 2008
	F.1. Employees of the Month
	H.1. Receive and Place on File the audit Report 2007-2008
	H.2. Approval of 2009 Summer School Proposal
	H.3. Approval of Rule 4405.3 - Human Resources - Payroll Deduction - 403(b) Tax Sheltered Annuities and Custodial Accounts
	H.4. Approval of Resolution and Millard Public Schools 403(b) Retirement Plan Policy Regarding Funding Vehicles/Vendor(s) Selection and De-Selection
	H.5. Approval of Reagan Addition
	H.6. Resolution for Retiring Board Member
	H.7. Approval to Change Meeting Dates in January
	H.8. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignation(s), Voluntary Separation, and Resignation Notification Incentive Program, and New Hire(s)
	Resignations
	Voluntary Separations
	Resignation Notification Incentive Program
	New Hire(s)
	I.1. Enrollment Report
	I.2. Preliminary Projections for Fall 2009
	I.3. North Central Accreditation (NCA) Advanced Report
	Abbott
	Ackerman
	Aldrich
	Black Elk
	Bryan
	Cather
	Cody
	Cottonwood
	Disney
	Ezra Millard
	Harvey Oaks
	Hitchcock
	Holling Heights
	Morton
	Neihardt
	Reeder
	Rockwell
	Rohwer
	Sandoz
	Wheeler
	Willowdale
	Andersen Middle
	Beadle Middle
	Central Middle
	Kiewit Middle
	North Middle
	Russell Middle
	North High
	South High
	West High
	I.4. Risk Management Report
	ADMMEMO December 15, 2008.pdf
	MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS




